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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
MAA General Assurance Philippines; Inc.

| bth Floor, Pear| Bank Centre Building

|46 Valera Street, Salcedo Village

Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
D pinion

We have audited the financial statements of MAA General Assurance Philippines, Inc, (Fthe
Company™) which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
and the statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and staterments of cash flows for the vears then ended, and notes to financial statements, including a
gummary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as st December 11, 2016 and 2015, and its financial perfermance
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRSs)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the duditor s Responsibilities for the
Auddit of the Financial Siatements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
rogether with the ethical requirements that are reflevant to our audit of the financial staternents in the
Philippines, and we have fulfilled our ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and sppropriate to provide 4 basis for our opinion,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary 1o
enahle the preparation of financial statements ﬂwit_a.rl:'lﬁ:'f'rﬁihmm missiatement, whether due 1o
fraud or emor. ; _ =
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In preparing the financial statements, management i& respomsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicabls, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease pperations, or has no realistic alternative but 10 do s0.

Those charged with governance are respoasible for overseeing the Company financial reporting
FT'.'.:IEEEE-.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Ciur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurence, but is mot & guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material missiatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reascaably be expected to influence the econemic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and ebtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriite to provide & basis for our opinien, The risk of not
detecting & material misstaternent resuliing from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from ermor,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal contral.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an
opinion on the effectivenzss of the Company’s internal contral.

e  Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimanes and related disclosures made by management.

o  Coneclude on the appropriateness of mansgement’s use of the going concsr Basis Tl accounting —
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether & material uncertainty exists related toevents -
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company”s ability jo continue as BERng , oo
concern. 1f we conclude that 3 material unceriainty exists, we are required to draw in ocur |
auditer’s report to the related disslosures in the financial statements o, | nt;nhqn:s
nadequate, to modify our epinion. Our conclusions are baséd on the audit evidencE Hbtain
10 the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may | :
to cease to continue as a going concern. T

R =g

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, NGMGIE e
dizclogures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlving transactions and cvents
in & manner that achieves fair preséntation.

LA

& racbi Mo BT & T g ool il



Buikding a betier
warhing werled

T

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

soope and tming of the eudit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010

Our sudits were conduetad for the purpose of formeng an opinicn ot the basic financial statements
taken as 8 whole, The supplementary mformation required under Revenue Regulations No, 13-2010in
Mote 28 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of the management of MAA General Assurance Philippines, Inc. The information has
been subjected 1 the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our
apinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYD & CO.

CPA Certificate Mo, 00507907
SEC Accreditation No. 1285-AR-1 (Group A),
May 12, 2016, valid until May 12, 2012
Tax ldentification No. 201-560-347
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001908-102-2015, "
November 25, 20135, valid untfl November 24,2018 | . ; - —-
BTR No. 5908702, January 3, 2017, Makati City | T
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MAA GENERAL ASSURANCE PHILIPPINES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Dee r 3]
| 2018 1 { Joarst 2015
ASSETS : /}/
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Notes 4 and 24) R584,181,505 ¢ "R319,023,52
Short-term Investments (Motes 5 and 24) 54,851,781 47 861,037
Insurance Receivables - net (Notes 6 and 24) 458,493,250 308,057,165
Financial Assets (Notes 7 and 24)
Available-for-gale financial assers 1,260,020,568 030069, 108
Loans and receivables 2673913 2.277.0587
Accrued Income (Notes § and 24) B.854,071 &m0 3594
Reinsuranee Assets (Motes 9, 14 and 14) 348,248,974 412,681,645
Deferred Acquisition Costs (MNote 10) 174,893 820 C1 56,750,945
Property and Equipment - net (Mote 11) 18359247 14,911,072
Intangible Asset (Note 12) 848,676 §.114,284
Deferred Tax Assets - net (Note 23) 7.378,935 6,880 289
Other Assets Note 13) 15,329,631 23,455,725
P1.O44,164,470 F2,336,885245
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities (Notes 14 and 24) F1,563.261,540 B 35] 982 45]
Insurance payables (Notes | 5 and 24) 20,508,213 56,067 048
Accounts payeble and other liabilities
(Motes 16, 24 and 27) 426,180,875 328,976,577
Deferred reinsurance commissions (Note 107 11,164,511 13,389,614
Retirement benefit liability- net (Note 22) 3.4871,910 7800311
Income tax pavable 2.071,653 -
2.027,448,712  1,758,106,001
Equity
Capital steck {Note 1T) 300,000, 00 300,000,000
Dreposit for future stock subscription (Note 17} 300,000,000 -
Contributed surplus 643,832 643,832
Centingency surplus {INate 24) 82,123,738 £2,123,738
Revalugtion reserve on available-for-sale
financial assets (Note T) (34,730,445 1,452 080
Retamed earnings 268,678,633 164,518,685

916,715,758 578,779,244
F2,044,164.470  #2,336,885 245

—_—

Sew accompanying Notes ro Firanciel Statement!
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MAA GENERAL ASSURANCE PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2016

2013

(Giress carned premiums on insurance contracts
{Hotes 14 and 1B}
Reinsurers’ share of gross earned premiums on insurance

®1,456,366,249 P1,255,309,580

gontracts (MNotes 14 and 18) (381,685,477) (192 365,602
Net insurance earned premiums 1,074.680,772 863,443,578
Commission income (Note 10) 10315439 28,158,550
Investment and other income - net (Note 19} 8,214,545 4,043,433
Other Income 07,529,084 — 70,801,983
Total income 1,172.210,756 034,245,961
(ross insurance contract benefits and claims paid

MNotes 14, 20 and 24) 466,560,349 437,008,381
Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance contract benetits and

claims paid (Notes 14, 20 and 24) (107, 334,486) (175,608,361}
Gross change in insurance contract liabilities (Note 20) 56,900,817 (3,280 454
Reinsurers’ share of gross change in insurance contract

liabilities (Note 20) 59,339,575 143,041,523
Net insurance benefits and claims £0%,766,155 401,052,364
Commission expense (Mote 10) 363,157,034 324,877,338
Other underwriting expense (Mote 21) 19,700,345 13,816,142
Operating expenses (Notes 21, 22 and 25) 181,043,418 120,563,371
Interest EXpense 218,500 436 776
Dther expenses $64.210,197 455,603,027
Total Benefits, Claims and Other Expenses 1,069,976,452 B60, 745,551
Income before income tax 102,234 304 73,495 970
Current 32627353 8,504,048
Deferred (5,360,752) 7,833,329
Provision for income tax (Note 23) 27,266,601 16,337,377
NET INCOME (MNote 256) B74.967,703 ®57,162,593

Lee pocompakiing Nates fe Fingncial Rorements
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MAA GENERAL ASSURANCE PHILIPPINES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2016 2013
NET INCOME (vote 26] 74,067,703 P57,162,593
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Jeams that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
preriods:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
(Nowe 7) (25,587 824) (22,012.648)
Realized fair value loss {gain} transferred to profit or loss
(Note T) (13,354,374) 761,923
Impairment loss transferred 1o profit or loss (Note 7) 1,719,264 - 8,726,203
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in siebsequent
peripds:
Remeasurement Joss on retirement benefit liability,
net of tax effect (Note 22) (807,733) {3,022,957)
(37,031,189 (15,557,479
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P37,936,514 B41,605,114

See accompaning Netes ta Financial Siatemeri
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MAA GENERAL ASSURANCE PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2016 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax B102,234 304 £73,499,970
Adjustments for:
Dividend income (Note 13) (23,434,548) (17,184,373}
Depreciation (Notes 11 and 21) 3,687,352 4,063,204
_Loss {gain) on sale of:
ATS fnancial assets [Nota 19) (13,354,874) 761,913
Property and equipment (Note 19) (776,209 (159,997
Impairment loss 2,719,264 8,726,203
Write-off of intangible asset (Note 12) B.114.286 = -
Interest expense 118,500 436,776
Interest income (Note 19) {31,283,144) (21,941,813)
Met operating income before working capital changes 48,124,231 48,201,673
Diecrease (increase) in:
Insurance receivables (50,436,084) (47958417
Short-term investments (7,020,744) (33,450.715)
Reinsurence recoverable on unpaid losses 59,339,575 143,041 828
Deferred reinsurance premiums 5,093,007 437,087
Loans and receivables o _[396,856) {1,604,485)
Deferred acquisition costs e L © (18,142,875) (20,612,374
Oither assets {13113.51]9] [1.865,303)
Increase (decrease) in: '
Provision for uneamed pr=m1ums. , 124378272 85,038,284
Frovision for claims reported and IBNE f_";; oA 7_‘:“',[ 86,900,817 (3,200 484)
Insurance payables 1 (35,168.815) 11,936,173
Accoums peyvable and other liabilities e - 07,204,198 66,539,201
Deferred reinsurance comimissions 1125,103) (1,446,757}
" Retirement benefit lisbility e 244,850 (6,662,511)
Net cash provided by operations 206,691,134 238,295,170
Income tax paid {31,225.997T) (8.843 5097
Net cash from operating activities 165,465,137 22B351,66)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Aequisition of:
AFS financial assets (Note 7) (2,256,005922) (2,135474,725)
Property and equipment (Note 11) (7,213,401} (2,568,363
Intangible assets (Mote 12) (B48.676) -
Proceeds from sele/maturities off
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 7) 1,911,214,500  1,858,349,682
Property and equipment (Note 11) 854,783 106,851
Interest received 28,475,605 18,118,370
Dividend received 23,434 548 17,184,573
Net cash used in investing activities (300,088.563)  (244.073.612)

(Forward)

TGN FTA Tk
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Years Ended December 31

2016 013

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Deposit for future stock subscription E300,000,000 P—
Interest paid {118,500} (436,776)
Met cash from operating activities 299,781,500 {436.776)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 265,158,074 (16,058, 727)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING

OF YEAR 319,023,511 335,182 248
CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS AT END

OF YEAR {Note 4} PS44,181,505  B319,043 311

Ree atcampanyihg Voetes to Finencial Stetemenis
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MAA GENERAL ASSURANCE PHILIFPINES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 459 4 4 s
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Corporate [nformation

MA A General Assurance Philippines, Inc. {“the Company™), & corporation duly organized and
existing under Philippine laws, is engaged in the business of nonlife thsurance, indemnifying
athers against loss, damage of lighility arising from unknown or contingent events. It inchudes
lines such gs fire and allied perils, motor vehicle, casualty, surety, maring cargo, marine bl
comprebensive liability ingurance and allied rizks, and’or such other insurance coverage allied
with and incident to the aforementioned lines. The Compary's ultimate parent is MAA Group
Berhad, which is domiciled in Malaysia-

The Company was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securitics and Exchanpe
Commission (SEC) on May B, 1550, Ina special Board of Directors’ (BODY) meeting held on
August 8, 1999, it was approved that the Articles of Incorporation will be amended w0 extend the
existence of the Company to anether fifty vears from its original expiry date, The Fhilippine SEC
approved the Amended Aricles of Incorporation in 2000,

The registered office address of the Company is 10th Floar, Pear] Bank Centre Building,
148 Valero Street, Saleedo Village, Makati City

The accompanying financial statements were authorized for issue by the BOD on March 28, 2017,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparaiion

The accompanying financial statements have beon prepared using the historical cost basis, except
for available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets which have been measured at fair value, The
financial statements are measured in Phil ippine Peso (F), which is also the Company's fanctional
and presentation currency. All vaiues are rounded off to the nearest peso values, unless otherwise
indicated.

The fnancial staterents of the Company have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

[
The Company applied for the first ime certait pronouncements, which are effective for annizal
periods beginning en or after Tanuary |, 2016, Adoption of these pronouncements did not have a
significant impact on the Company's financial position or performance unless otherwise indicated,

s Amendments to PFRS 10, Comsolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 11, Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities, and PAS 28, Invesiments in ASsoclates and Joint Ventures,
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidmion Exception

These amendments clarify that the exemption in FFRS 10 from presenting consolidated

Financial statements applics to a parent entity thatis a subsidiary of an investment entity that
measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. They alsa elarify that only a subsidiary of an
investment entity that is not an investment entity itself and that provides support services 1o

AWANARMI AT
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the investment ¢ntity parent is consolidated, The amendments also allow an investor (that is
not an investment entity and has an investment entity sssociate or Joint venture) to retain the
fair value measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture to jts
interests in subsidiaries when applying the equity method.

These amendments are niot applicable to the Company sinee none of the entities within the

Lompany is an investment entity nor does the Company have investment entity associates or
Joint ventures,

Amendments to PFRS 11, Joir Arramgements, Acesumting for Acquisitions of Interesis in
Joimt Operations

The amendments to PFRS 11 reguire a joint operator that is accounting for the acquisition of
an interest in & joint cperation, in which the activity of the joint operation coastitutes a
business (as defined by FFRS 3), 1o apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business
rombinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that & previoushy held interest in a
Joint operation is not remeasured on the sequisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has heen added 1o
FFRS 11 1o specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint contral,
ncluding the reporting entity, are under common cantrol of the same ultimate contral ling

party.

The amendments apply to bath the scquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Company as there has been no interest
acquired in a joint operation during the perfod.

PFRS 14, Regularory Deferral Accounts

PERS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-
regulation, 1o continue applying most of its existing accounting policies far regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate ling items an the statement of financial
position and presznt movements in these account balances as sepurate line items in the
latement of income and other comprehensive mecome. The standard requires disclosures on
the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity's rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-
regulation on its finoncial statements,

Since the Company is an existing PFRS preparer, this standard would not apply.

Amendments 1o FPAS 1, Fresentation of Financial Statements, Disclosure Tnitiative

The amendments are intended o assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the
presentation and disclosure requirements in PFRSs. They clarify the following:

«  That entitses shall not reduce the understandability of their financial statements by either
abscuring material information with immaterial information; or aggregating material items
that have different natures ar functions

*  That specific ling items in the statement of income and other comprehensive income and

the statement of financial position may be disaggregated
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*  That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes ta financial
statements

*  That the share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted
for using the equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item. and

classified between those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or
[oss.

These amendments have an impact on presentation Company's financial statement anly,

Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 18, Mtangible Assers,
Clarificarion af Accepable Methods of Depreciation and Amortizaifon

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattam of
economic benefits that are penerated from operating a business {of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intan gible assets,

These amendments are applied prospectively and do not have any impaet 1o the Company
given that the Company has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate or amortize its
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41, Agriculture: Bearer Planis

The amendments change the accounting requitements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, bivlogical assets that meet the definition of
bearer plaats will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41, Instead, PAS 16 will apply. Afier
initiel recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
miaturity} and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grams related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure af Government Assistance,

will apply.

The amendments are applied retrospectively and do not have any impact on the Company as
the Company does not have any bearer plants,

Amendments to PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements, Equity Method in Separare Financial
Srarements

The amendments allow entities 10 use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities _
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have 1o apply that change retrospectively,

These amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

ARETTAVTS A



o 173

all m to 552012 - 2014 &

* Amendment to PFRS 5, Now-curvent dssets Held for Sale and Discontinped Cperarions,
Changes in Methads of Disporsen!

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale 10 a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be
2 new plan of disposal, rather it is 5 continuation of the original plan. There iz, therefore, no
intereuption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5, The amendment tlso clarifies
that changing the dispasal method does not change the date of classification.

* Amendment to FFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Dhisclosures, Servicing Contracts

PERS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing
contract that inclodes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An
entity imust mssess the natre of the fee and arrangement against the guidapce for continuing
invalvement in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The
amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constituie
continuing involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However, comparative
disclosures are not reguired to he provided for any period beginning before the annual perind
in which the entity first applies the amendments.

* Amendment to PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments io PFRS 7 o Condensed Interim
Firancial Statements

This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial
repart unless they provide & significant update to the infarmation reported in the most recent
gnnual report.

*  Amendment o PAS 19, Emplovee Benefits, Discouwnt Rate: Regional Market Issue

This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high qualiny
corporate bonds iz assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep mark=t for high
quality corporate bonds in that currency, govemment bond rates must he used.

*  Amendment to PAS 34, Interim Financial Reparting, Disclosure of Information 'Elsewhere in
the Interim Finaneial Repore'

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures
must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference betwies
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater intesim
financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report)

Future Accountis igies

Proncuncements issweed but not vet effective are listed below, Unless otherwise indicated, the
Liroup does nat expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a sjlgniﬁnam
impact on its consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following
pronouncemeants when they become effective.



Effective beginning on or after Janary £, 2007

Amendment to PFRS 12, Clarificarion of the Scope of the Srandard (Part of Anmucl
Improvemenis to PFRSs 2014 - 1016 Cycle)

The amendmenis clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating
to summarized financial information, apply to an entify’s interest in a subsidiary, & joint
venture or an assodiate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is
classified {or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

The amendments do not have any impact on the Comparmy”s financial position and results of
operation.

Amendments to PAS 7, Sratement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative

The amendments 1o PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclesures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in lishilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign
exchange gaing or losses). On initial application of the amendments, entities are not required
to provide comparative information for preceding periods. Early application of the
amendments is permitted,

Application of amendments will result in additional disclosures in the 2017 financial
statements of the Company.

Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taves, Recognition of Daferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs 10 consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits agzinst which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may
include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrving amount,

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application
of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may
be recognized in opening retnined earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other
components of equity. Entities applying this relicf must disclose that fact. Early application of
the smendments & permited.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company.

Effective begluning on or after Jamary [, 2013

Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Pavmeni Transactions

The amendments ta PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of o cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based pavment transaction with net settlement features for withhalding tax obligations: and
the accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-bused payment
transaction changes its classification from cash seftled 1o equity settled.
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On adnpﬂpn, :mi!_l‘:s are required to apply the amendments witheut restating prior periods, but
refrospective application is permitied if elected for al] three amendmenis and i other criteria
are met. Early application of the amendments is permitted,

The adoption of the amendments is not expected to have any significant impact an the
Companys finarcial statements.

Amendments to FFRS 4, fswrance Contracts, Applying PERS 8, Fiwemcial Instrinents. with
PFRE 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implementing the forthcoming insurance contracts standard, They
allew entities to choose between the overlay approach and the deferral spproach to deal with
the transitional challenges, The overlay approach gives all entitics that issue insurance
contracts the option to recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the
volatility that could arise when PFRS 9 is applied before the new nsurance contracts standard
is issued. On the other hand, the deferral approach gives entities whose activities are
predominantly connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from applying
PFRS 9 until the earlier of application of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard or
January 1, 2021,

The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available to an entity if it has not
previously applied PFRS 9.

The Compeny is assessing which approach it will use and the potential impact of the chosen
epproach in its financial statements.

PERS 13, Revenue from Cantracts with Customers

PERS 135 establishes a new five-step mode] that will apply 10 reverue arising from contracts
with customers, Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transfemring goods or
services 1o a customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide & more structured approach to
measuring and recognizing revente.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under PFRSs. Either a full or modified retrospective epplication is
required for ennual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018,

These amendments will not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements
PFRS 9, Financial Inttruments

PFRS ¥ reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Tnstruments: Recogmition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9, The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and méasurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after Jaflua.::qlr 1,
2018, with early application permited. Retrospective application is :n:quirel_:]. but providing
comparstive information is not compulsory, For hedge accounting, the requirements are
generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions,
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The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an cifect on the classification and measurement of the
!:'umpan}r’i financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no
impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial Habilities, The adoption
will also have an effect on the Company’s application of hedge accounting and on the amount
of its credit losses, The Lompany is currently assessing the impact of adopting thic standard,

Amendments to PAS 18, Meastring an Associate or Joing Venture at Fair Value (Pan of
Armnual fmprovements to PFRSz 2014 - 2016 Cyele)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or cther qualifving
emtity, may clect, at initial FECOBNItion on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair valye through profit or loss. They also
clarify that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or
Juint venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when spplving the equity method,
elect 1o retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity assotiate or joint
veniure to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This
election s made separately for sach investment Entity associate or joint venture, at the later of
the date on which (a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized: (b)
the associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (¢} the investment entity
associate or joint venture first becomes a parent. The amendments should be applied
retrospectively, with earlier application permitted. These amendments will not have any
impact on the Company's financial statements.

Amendments to PAS 40, brvesement Properey, Transfers af fnvestment Propery

The amendments clarify when an entity should ransfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property, The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, o ceases to mieet, the definition of investment
property and there 15 evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments should be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments,
Retrospective application is only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsi ght
These amendments will not have any impact on the Company's financial statements.

Philippine Interpretation [FRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The interpretation clerifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset. expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of &
non-manetary asset of non-monetary liability relating to advance consideratian, the date of the
transaction i3 the date on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary ssset or nan-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. I there are multiple payments or
receipis in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment
or receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation may be applied on a fully retraspective
basis. Entities may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in
it scope that are initially recognized on or afier the beginning of the reporting peried in which
the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period preseated
as comparstive mformation in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the
entity first applies the interpretation. These amendments will not have any impact on the
Company’s financial statements.
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Effective beginning on or affer Jamuary 1, 2019

PFRS 16, Leaser

Under the new standard, lessces will no longer classify their laases a5 either operating or
finance leases in accordance with PAS 17, Leases, Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset
model, Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related lizkilities for most
leases om their bulance sheets, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize
interest on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or Jess o
for which the underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements.

'I'J?c accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under PAS 17, Lessors, however, will be required to disclose
mare information in their financial statements. particularly on the risk exposure to residual
value,

Entities may early adopt PFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted PFRS 15, When
adopiing PERS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrogpective or a modified
retrospective approach, with options to use certain transition reliefs,

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 14,

BDeferred effectiviry

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribation of Assets berwsen an Mnvestar and
s Assaciale or Jeint Ferlure

The amendments address the conflict between FFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the Joss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate ar joint veature, The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or
Jjoint venture involves a business as defined in PERS 1, Business Combinarions. Any gain or
loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute 3 business,
however, is recognized only 1o the extent of unrelated investors” injerests in the associate or
joint venture,

(n January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council postponed the original
effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting
Standards Board has completed its broader review of the research project on equity accounting
that may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of
accounting for associates and joint ventures.

Use Imates. Assumptions and Jud
The preparation of the financial statements necessitates the use of estimates, assumptions and

judgments. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities

at the end of the reporting period as well as the reported income and expenses for the year,
Although the estimates are based on management’s hest knowledge and Judgment of current facts
as at the end of the reporting period, the setual sutcome may differ from these estimates, possibly
significantly. For further information on critical estimates and judgments, refer to Note 3.



Product Classification
Shsuronce Confracts

Insurance contracts are defined as those contracts under which the Company (the insurer) accepts
significant insurance risk from enother party (the polieyhelders) by agreeing to compensate the
policyholders if & specified uncertain future event (the Insured event) adversely affects the
policyholder. As a general guideline, the Company defines significant insurance risk, by
comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance
contracts can zlso transfer financial risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible furure change in
ene or more of a specified interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate,
index of price or raies, a credit rating or credit index or other variablie.

Omee a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for
the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period,
unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or has expired.

it Walue Measurernont
The Company measures fnancial instrument at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to s=ll the assel or transfer the
liakility takes place either:

o Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal ar the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or 2 liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liakility, assuming that markst participants agt in their
economic best interest,

The Company uses valuation technigues thet ere appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair valee, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and Habilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the fnancial statements
arc categonized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 2 whole:

s Level I - Quoted (umadiusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

s Level 2 - Valuation techniquas for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
valug measurement is directly or indirsctly obzervable

s Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement 15 vnobservable,

For assets and linbilities that are recognized in the finencial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have oceurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting period.
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d Cazh Equivalents
Fas,h includes cash on hand and in banks, Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liguid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less from dates of placement and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

valug,
Shon-term Investiments

Short-term investments are shosi-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with original maturities of mare then three months but less than one vear
from dates of placement. These eam interests at the reapective shor-term investment rates,

Insurange Receivables

Insurance receivables are recognized on policy inception dates and measured on initial recognition
at the fair value of the consideration receivable for the period of coverage. Subsequent to intisl
recognition, insurance receivables are measured at amortized cost. The carrying value of
insurance receivables is reviewed for impainment whenever events ar circumstances indicate that
the earrying amount may not be recoverable, with the mpairment loss recorded in profit or loss,

Finangial Instrumenis

Dare of recognition

Financial instruments are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Purchases or sales of financial
asscts that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace are recognized on the trade date.

Initigd recegnition of financial instremenis

Financial instruments are initially recognized at fuir value of the consideration given (in case of an
assel) or received (in case of a liability). Except for Ninancial instruments at fair valus through
profit or loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs. The
Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: held-to-maturity (HTM)
investments, AFS investments, FVPL investments and loans and receivables. The Company
classifies its financial linbilities into financial liabilities at FVPL and other fnancial liabtlities,
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquered and whether
they are quoted in an active market, Management determines the classification of its investments
al initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at Bvery
end of the reporting period.

Day I difference

W here the transaction price in & non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technigue
whaose variables include only date from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1" difference) in profit or loss unless it
quaiifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In ceses where an unobservable data is used.
the difference between the tranzaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss
when the inputs become chservable or when the instrument is derecognized. For cach transaction,
the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1" difference amount.
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Lodans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed of determinable payments and fixed
maturities that are not quoted in an active market, They are not entered into with the intention of
tmmediate or shori-term resale and are not classified as financial assets held for trading,
designated as AFS or FYPL. This accounting policy relates to the statement of financial position
captions: (a) “Cash and Cash Equivalents”, (k) “Shart-term Investments™, (¢} “Insurance
Receivables™, () “Loans and receivables” and () “Accrued Income™,

After initial measurement, the loans and receivahles are subsequently measured al amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method, less allowance for impaiment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortization i5 included in the Investment and other
Income account in profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment of such loans and
receivables are recognized in profit or loss.

AFYN invesiments

AFS investments are those which are designated as such or do not qualify to be classified as
designated at FVPL, HTM or loans and receivables. Th €y are purchased and held indefinitely, and
may be sold in response 1o liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions,

After inltial measutement, AFS investments are subsequently measured at fair value, The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restaterment on foreign
currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in gamings, Interest earned on holding
AFS investments are reported as interest income using the effective interest rate, Dividends
earned on holding AFS investments are recognized in profit or loss when the right to receive the
payment has been established. The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair valuaton of
AFS investments are reported as ‘Revaluation reserve on available-for-sale financial assets” in
other comprehensive income, The losses arising from impairment of such investments are
recognized in profitor loss. When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized a3 realized gains or losses in
prefit or loss. Where the Company holds more than one investment in the same sezurity, the cost
is determined using the weighted average method.

When the fair value of AFS investments cannot be measured reliably becanse of lack of reliable
estimates of future cash flows and diseount rates necessary to caleulate the fair value of unquoted
equity instruments, these invesiments are carried at cost

Chtker financial liabilities

Issued financial instruments or their companents, whick are not desi gnated at FVPL are classified
as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the
Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to
satisty the obligation other than by the exchange of 2 fixed amount of cesh or another financial
asset for 2 fixed number of eovn equity shares.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Ameortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
diseount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
Any effects of restatement of forsign currency-denominated liabilities are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income,
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This accounting policy applies primarily to the Company’s insurance pavables and accounts
]:la.:-*ah]:land other liabilities that meet the above definition {other than lizbilities coversd by other
accounting standards, such as income tax pavable and retirement benefit liability),

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilitiss are offset and the net amount ig reported in the statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is 5 currently enforceable legal right to offset the
Fecognized amounts and there is an intention 1o settle on & net bagis, or to realize the assct and
seitle the liabiliny simulian=ously.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there {5 ohjective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial essers is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed 1o be impaired if, and enly if, there is objective evidence of impairment a5 a
result of ooe or more events that has vecurred afier the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
‘loss event') and that loss event [aor evenis) has an impact on the estimated future cash Aaws of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated, Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal pavments, the
probabiliry that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorgamization and where observable
data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes
in grrears or economic conditions that cocrelate with defaults.

Financial Assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amoriized cost (¢-g, loans and receivables, HTM investments), the
Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exiss for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individ ually
assessed financial asset, whather significant or not, it includes the assetina group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss i3, or continues to be,
recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, The present value of the estimated future cash flows is diseounted at
the financial asset’s criginal effective interest rate.

ITaloan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss s the
current effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of loss is charged against profit or loss. 1f, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreages because of an event oceurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed, Anv
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that the
carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date,
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The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial as5et’s origmal
effective interest rate. Time value is generally not considered when the offect of diseounting is not
material. Ifa loan his a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective (nterest rate, adjusted for the eriginal credit risk premium. The calculation
of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the callateral,
whether or not foreclosure is probable.,

For the purpose of a collective evelustion of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of credit risk characteristics such as past-due status and term,

AFS investments carried af fair value

In case of equity investments classified as AFS, impairment indicators would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fuir value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the
statement of other comprehensive Income is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through
profit or loss. Increases in fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other
comprehensive ingome.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment is assessed based on
the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. Future interest income is based on
the reduced carrying amount and is acerued based on the rate of interest used to discount Future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss. Such scerual is recorded as part of
“Interest income™ in profit or lass. If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event sccurring afier the impairment
loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

AFE Investments carvied at cosr

IFthere is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on an ungueted equity Instrument that fs
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be senled by delivery of such unquoted equity instrument has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
end the present value of estimated future cash flows diseounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset,

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Lighbilities
Financial Asset )
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of & financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assess) is derecognized where:

» the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through'

arrangsment; or

s the Company has tramsfermed its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (4] has
transfierred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the rizks and rewards of the asset. but has transferred control of the

BR5El,
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Where the Cnmpanly has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred contral
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
BSRET,

Finameiai Liabiliry

A financial liability i derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or has expired. Whers an existing financial lisbility is replaced by enother from the
same lender on substantially different terms. or the termns of an existing liability are substantially
modified, Such_m exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liabidiny

recognized in profit or loss.

Beinsurance

The Company eedes insurance risk in the nosmal course of business. Reinsurance assets represent
balances due from reinsuranee companies. Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner
consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance
contract.

An impairment review is performed at each at end of the reporting period or more frequently when
&n ndication of impairment arises during the reporting vear. Impairment occurs when objective
evidence exists that the Company may not recover autstanding amounts under the terms of the
contract and when the impact on the amounts that the Company will rezeive from the reinsurer can
be measured reliably. The impairment loss is charged apainst profit or logs,

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from it obligations 1o policyholders,

The Company alse assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for Insurance
contracts. Premiums and claims on assumed refnsumance are recognized in profitor loss as income
and expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct
husiness, taking into account the product ¢lassification of the reinsured business. Keinsurance
liabilities répresent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts pavable are estimated in a
manner consistent with the associated reinsurance contract,

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for hoth ceded and assumed reing urance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished ar
expired or when the contract is transferred 1o another party.

When the Company enters into a proportional treaty reinsurance agreement for ceding out its
insurance business, the Company initially recognizes a Ieability af transaction price. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the portion of the amount initially recognized as a liability which is presented
as Insurance pavables in the liabilities ssction of the statement of fnancial position will be
withheld and recognized as funds held for reinsurers and ineluded as part of the Insurance
payables in the liabilities section of the statement of financial position. The amount withheld is
generally released after & year. Funds held by ceding companies is accounted for in the same

minnnar,
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ferred uisitian DA
Commissions and other acquisition costs incurred during the financial period that vary with and
are related to securing new insurance contracts and or renewing existing insurance contracts, but
which relates to subsequent financial periods, are deferred to the exters that they are recoverable

out of future revenue margins. All ather BCcquisition costs are recognized as expense when
in¢urred,

Subsequent te inttial recognition, these costs are amortized on a straight-line basis using the 24th
method over the life of the contract except for the marine cargo where commissions for the last
two months of the vear are recognized as expense the foliowing year. Amortization iz charged
against profit or loss, The unamortized scquisition costs are shown as defersed acquisition costs in
the Assets section of the statement of financial position.

An impatrment review is performed at each end of the reporting period or more frequently when
an indication of impairment arises. The carrying value is written down to the recoverable amount.
The impairment loss is charged to predit or loss. DAC is also considered [n he liability adequacy
test for cach end of the reporting period.

and ipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value,

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including any directly
aitributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for fts intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, a8
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are chargsd against profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
properties, or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter, for leasehold improvements. es follows:

¥ ears
Transportation equipment 3-10
Leaschold improvements 5
Computer equipment 5
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 5
Building 20

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
period and method of depreciation and amortization are censistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from items of property and equipment.

When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost of the related
accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated provision for impairment lasses, if
any, are removed from the aceounts and any resulting gain or logs is eradited to or charged against
profit or loss.
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Creditable Withholding Taxes (CWTs)

Creditable withholding pertains to the indirect tax paid by the Company that 15 withheld by its
counterparty for the payment of its expenses and other purchases. These CWTs are initially
recorded at cost as an asset under "Other assets™ account.

At each end of the tax reporting deadling, these CWTs may either be offset against fulure tax
income pavable or be claimed as a refund from the taxation authorities at the aption of the
Company. If these CWTs are claimed as a refund, these will be recorded as a receivable under
HLesans and receivables™ account.

At each end of the reporting period, an assessment for impairment is performed as 1o the
recoverability of these CWTs,

Inta el
Intangible asset pertains to the Company s computer software,

Costs associated with the acquisition of computer software are capitalized only if the asset can be
reliably measured, will generate fature economic pencfits, and there is an ability to use or sell the
assel.

Computer sofiware is carried at cost less accumulated amortization, Computer software ¢ost is
amortized over the expected useful life of the asset, but net to gxceed five (5) years. All computer
software components are amortized over five (3) vears. Amortization commences when the esset
is available for use or when it is in the location and condition necessary for it 1o be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Company.

Impairment of Monfinancial Assets

The Company asscsses at each end of the reporting period whether thers is an indication that
property and equipment and its intangible assets may be impaired. Ifany such indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
senerating unit’s fair value less costs 1o sell and its value in use and is determined for an
ndividual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
these from other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is consider=d impaired and is written down to its recoverable
gmiount, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using 4 pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

An pssessment is made at each end of the reporting period as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no Jonger exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used 1o determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. I that is the case, the camrying amount of
the msgel is increased o its recoverable amount. That increesed amount cannot exceed the camrying
amount thet would heve been determined, wet of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recagnized for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss unless the asset
is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated a5 & revaluation increase, After
such reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in fulure periods to allocate the asset’s revised
carrving amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.



Yalue-added Tax (VAT)
The input value added tax pertains to the 12% indirect tax paid by the Company in the course of
the Company s trade or business on local purchase of goods or services,

Output VAT pertains to the | 2% tax due on the sale of insurance policies and other poods or
services by the Company.

[f at the end of any taxable month, the output VAT exceeds the input VAT, the outstanding
balance is included under “Accounts pavable and accrued expenses” account. [f the mput VAT
exceeds the output VAT, the excess shall be carried over to the succeeding months and included
under “Other assets™ account,

ct Lisbilitie
Insurance contract liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are

charged.

FProvision for Uneamed Premivums

The proportion of written premiums, gross of commissions payable 1o intermediaries, attributable
to subsequent periods or 10 risks that have not vet expired is deferred as provision for uncarned
premiums. Premiums from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the
period of the comtracts using the 24th method except for the marine cargo where premiums for the
last twa months are considered earned the following vear. The portion of the premiums written
that relate to the unexpired periods of the policies at end of the reporting period are accounted for
as Provision for unearned premiums as part of Insurance contract liabilities and presented in the
llabilities section of the statement of financial position. The change in the provision for uneamed
premiums is taken w profit or loss in order that revenue is recognized over the period of risk.
Further provisions are made to cover claims under unexpired insurance contracts which may
exceed the unearned premiums and the premiums due in respect of these contracts.

Claimy Provision and Incerred Bur Not Reported (IBNRY Losses

These ligbilities are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all ¢laims incurred but not settled at
the end of the reporing period together with related claims handling costs and reduction for the
expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays can be experienced in the notification and
settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the witimate cost of which cannot be known with
certainty at the end of the reporting period. The liability is not discounted for the time value of
money and includes provision for [BNR losses, The liability is derecognized when the contract is
discharged, cancelled or has expired.

Liahility Adeguiacy Test

At each end of the reporting period, lizbility adequacy tests are performed, to ensure the adequacy
of insurance contract liabilities, net of related DAC assets. In performing the test, current best
estimates of future cash flows, claims handling and policy administration expenses are used.
Changes in expected claims that have occurred, but which have not besn sertled, are reflected by
acjusting the liability for cluims and future benefits. Any inadequacy is immediately charged to
the statement of comprehensive income by establishing an unexpired rigk provisicn for losses
arising from the liability adequacy tests. The provision for uneamed premiums is increased to the
extent that the future claims and sxpenses in respect of current insurancs contracts exceed future
aremiums plus the current provision for uncamed premiums,

LT
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Pension Cost

'I'h-.-T net defined benefit lability or asser is the aggregare of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any),
adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset 10 the asset ceiling, The asset ceiling
is the present value of any sconomic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
prajected unit eredit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

*  Service cost

* Net interest on the net defined benefit ligbility or assex
* Remeasurements of net defined benefit Lability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
reutne settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment cccurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by
independent qualified actuaries.

Met interest on the net defined benefit Eability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit lisbility or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by
applving the discount rate besed on government bonds 1o the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Met interest on the net defined benefit Bability ar asset is recognized as expense or income in
profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in

the effect of the assel ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized

immedietely in cther comprehensive ineome in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements
are not reclassified 1o profit or Joss in subseguent periods.

Plan assels are assets that are held by a long-term emploves benefit fund or qualifying msurance
policies, Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid
directly to the Company. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no
market price is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future
cash flows using & discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the
maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period
until the settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the
present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benafit
asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The Company’s right to be réimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
defined benefit obligation is recognized as a separate assetat fair value when and only when
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Equity

Capital stock represents the value of shares that have been issued st par,
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ijtrihut:d surplus includes any premiums received in excess of par value on the issuance of
eapital stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from
additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits

Contingency surplus pertains 1o capital infisions of shareholders in order to comply with Margin
of Solvency (MO3) deficiency as a result of the examination made by the Insurance Commission
(IC}.

Retained eamings include all the accumulated earnings of the Company.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized 10 the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Promiums revene

Liross insurance writlen premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whele period of
cover provided by contracts entered inte during the accounting period and are recognized on the
date on which the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accountin B
period for premiums receivable in respect of business written in prier periods.

Premiums from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the
contracts using the 24th method except for the marine cargo where premiums for the last rwo
months are considered eamed the following vear, The partion of the premiums written that relate
to the unexpired periods of the policies at end of the reporting period are accounted for as
Provision for uneamed premiums a5 part of Insurance contract liabilitics and presented in the
liahilities section of the statements of financial position. The related reinsurance premiums ceded
that pertains to the unexpired periods at end of the reporting period are accounted for as Deferred
reinsurance premiums and shown as part of reinsurance assets in the statements of financial
position. The net changes in these aceounts between each end of reporting periods are recognized
in profit or loss.

Reimsurance commission income

Commissions earned from shor-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the
period of the contracts using the 24th method except for the marine carga where the deferred
reinsurance commissions for the last two months of the vear are considered eamed the following
year, The porticn of the commissions that relate to the unexpired periods of the palicies at end of
the reporting period are accounted for as Deferred reinsurance commissions and presented in the
liabilities section of the statement of financial position.

Interest income

For all financial instruments messured at amortizad cost and interest-hearin ¢ financial instruments,
mterest income is recorded at the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated fiture cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation takes
mto account all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment options ),
meludes any fees or ineremental costs that are direerly anributable to the instrument and are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses, The adjusted carrying
amount is calculated based on the originel effective interest rate. The change in cammying amount
is recorded as interest income.
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Onee the :_'emrqed vilue of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced
due 10 an tmpairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the original effective
interest rate applied to the new camying amount,

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders' night to receive the payment is eciablished.

nefi Clag
Benefits and claims consists of benefits and claims paid to policyholders, which includes changes
in the valuation of Insurance contract liabilities, excepl for changes in the provision for unearned
premiums which are recorded in insurance revenue. Tt further includes internal and external
claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims. Amounts
receivable in respect of salvage and subrogation are also considered. General insurance claims are
recorded on the basis of notifications received.

Other Expenses
Oher underwriting expense, operating expenses and interest expense, except for lease agreements,
are recognized as expense s they are incurred.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right o use the
asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

1, There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arran gement;

b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal ar
extension was initially included in the lease term

€. There s a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;
ar

d. There iz a substantial change to the asser.

Where o reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence of cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise 1o the reassessment for scenarios &, ¢ of d above, and at the date
of renewal or extension period for scenario (B),

Leases where the lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the assets are classified as operating leases. Lease payments on operating leases are recognized on
a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Foreign Exchange Transactions

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Philippine Pesa (B}, Transactions
in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and lizbilities denominated in foreign currencies ere translated at the
functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differcnces arising
from translstion of monetary assets are taken to profit or loss while differences arising from
foreign currency-denominated equity securities classified as AFS financial assets are included in
the statement of comprehensive income.
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Visio d Comtingencies
Provisions are recognized when the Company has present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement Is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virrually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or
ioss, net of any reimbursement, If the effect of the time value of money is material, provigions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time s
recogmized as an interest expense

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, Contingent assets

are nat recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probabile.

I| ISome ! i

Curreni fax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expecied to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted ar substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred rax

Deferred tax is provided, using the ligbility method, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and Habilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable tempaorary differences, including asset
revaluations. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carryforward of unused tax credits from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT)
aver the regular income tax, and pnesed net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that
it is probable that sufficient texable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and caryforward of unused tax credits from MCIT and unused NOLCO can be
utilized, Deferred tax, however, is not recognized on termporary differences that arise from the
wittal recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that s not a business combination and, at
the time of the transacticn, affects neither the accounting income nar taxable income or Joss,

I'he carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assers are
reassessed at each end of the reporting peried and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured a1 the tax rates that are applicable (o the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting pericd, Movements in the deferred tax
assets and lisbilities arising from changes in tax rates are charged against or credited to income for
the period.
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Cunen!: tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized as other comprehensive income is also
recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsetif a legally enforceable right exists to set

nﬂ’lcurrcnt Tax assels against current 1ax lisbilities and deferred taxes related to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Evegits after the Reporting Period

Any post vear-end events that provide additional information about the Company's position at the
end of the reporting period {adjusting event) are reflected in the financial statements. Past year-
end events that are not adjusting evenss, if any, are disclosed in the financial statements when
material,

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

Below are the estimates and jud gments used in preparing the Company's financial statements.
These estimates and judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and contingent
Habilities a1 the end of the repoming period as well as affecting the reported income and expenses
for the year. These estimates are based on management’s best knowledge based on historical
experences for future expectations and judgment of information and financial data as at the date
the financial statements are approved. Although these estimates are believed to be reasonable
untder the clreumstances, the actual sutcome miay differ from these estimates, pxssihly
significantly, in future periods when subject 1o changes.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical expericnce and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 1 be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Judgments

Clperating leares

The Company has entered into property leases for jts operations. The Company has determined
that the lessor retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownershi P of these properties which
are being leased on operating leases,

Classificarion of financlal assets

The Company classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted
or not in an aetive market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in an
active market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available,
and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an amm’s-
length basis,

Estimates

Claims liabidities arising from insurmnee contracts

For nonlife insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of
claims reported at the end of the reporting peried end for the expected ultimate cost of the [BNR
claims at the end of the reporting period. It can take a significant period of time before the
ultimate claims cost can be established with ¢ertainty and for some type of policies, IBNR ¢laims
farm the majority of the statement of financial position claims provision, The primary technique
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adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR clams, is thet of using past
claim setilermnent trends 10 predict future claims settlement trends. At each end of the reporting
peried, prior year claims estimates are assessed for adequacy and changes made are charged to
provision. Nonlife insurance claims provisions are not discounted for the time value of maoney.

The main assumption underlying the estimation of the claims provision iz that a Company’s past
claims development sxperience can be used to project future claims development and hence
ultimate claims costs. Historical claims development is mainly analyvzed by accident vears, but
can alse be further analyzed by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are
usually separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates
or separately projected in order to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit
assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the
assumptions used are those implicit in the kistorical claims development data on which the
projections are based,

Asof December 31, 2016, the carrying values of provisien for autstanding claims and [BNR
amounted to B6TE.088.153 and B 38,968,980, respectively. As of December 11, 2015, the
carrying values of provision for outstanding claims and IBNR amaumted to #623,452,556 and
126,703,760, respectively (see Note 14)

Fair Vaiues of AFS financial assets

The Company carries certain financial assets at fair value. which requires extensive use of
accounting estimates and judgments. Fair value detarminations for financial assets and lizbilities
are based generally on listed or quoted marker prices, If prices are not readily determinable or if
liquidating positions is reasonably expecied 1o affect market prices, fair value is based on either
internal valuation models or management’s estimate of amounts that could ke reglized under
surrent market conditions, assuming an orderly liquidation over a reasonable peried of time,
While signiticant components of fair value were determined using verifiable objective evidence
{i.e; foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates), the amount of changes in fair value of
these financial assets and liabilities would affect the statement of other comprehensive income,

The carrying value of AFS financial assets is F1,260,020,568 and B935,969.108 as of
December 31, 2016 and 2013, respectively (see Nate 7).

Impairment of Financial dssets

The Company determines that AFS equity investments ars impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence
of impairment exists. The determination of what is significant or profonged decline requires
Judgment. The Company treats ‘significant’ generally as 20% or more ar ‘prolonged’ greater than
twelve (12) months. In addition, the Company evaluates other factors, including the normal
volatility in the share price for quoted equities and the future cash flows and the discount faciore
for unquoted equities, Impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in
the financial health of the investee, the industry and sector performance, like changes in
technology, and operational and financing cash flows,

The Company reviews its loans and receivables at each end of the reporting period to assess
whether an allowance for impairment shoold be recorded in the statement of comprehensive
tneome. [n particular, judgment by management i required in the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are
based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future
changes to the allowance,
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The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the
collectibility of the accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to age of balances,
financial status of counterparties, payment behavior and known market factors, The Company
reviews the age and status of recervables, and identifies accounts that are to be provided with
allowance on & regular basis,

In addition 1o specific allowance against individually significant loans and receivables, the
Company also makes & collective impairment allowanee against expesures which, although not
specifically identified &s requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of default than when
originally granted.

The amount and timing of recorded expenses for eny period would differ if the Company made
different judgments or utilized different estimates, An increase in allowance for doubtful accounts
would increase recorded expenses and decrease net income.

Insurance receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, amounted to B458,493 259 and
B398,057,165 as of December 31, 2016 and 201 3, respectively (see Note §). Loans and
receivibles amounted to 82,673,913 and 2,277,057 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively {see Note 7).

The Company has recognized impairment loss amounting to B2, 719 264 in 2016 and P8,726,203
in 2013 on its AFS financial assers (see Noe 7).

Estimuated Useful Lives of Properyy and Equipment and Iniangible Assets

The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and its
intangible asset, based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. It
is possible that future results of operations could be materially effected by changes in these
esttmates. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and its intangible
assets would increase recorded depreciation and amortization expense and decrease the related
assel BoCOMNLS,

As of December 11, 2016 and 2015, property and equipment amounted to B18,359.247 and
BI4.911,072, respectively {see Note 11). Intangible aszet amouirted to PELE6TS and BE, 1 14,286,
respectively as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 {see Naote 12).

Tmpalement of nonfinarciol Gisels

The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes n circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that the
Company considers impartant which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

= significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected firture operating
results;

» significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

» significant negative industry or economic trends.
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The Company recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an assst exceeds its
recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's net selling price and valwe
in use, The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s-lengih
transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Recoverable
amounts are estimated for individual assets or investments or, if it is not possible, for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use of the assets or holding of an investment, the Company is required 1o make
estimates and assumpiions that can materially affect the financial stetements.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2013, the Company has not yecognized any impairment loss on its
nonfinancial assels.

Penston and Other Enployee Benefiis
The determination of the Company's obligation and cost for pension and other retirement benefits
is dependent on selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amoumnts.

Those assumptions are deseribed in Note 22 and include among others, discount raics and rates of
salary increase. While the Company belicves that the assumptions are reasonable and uppropriate,
significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially
affect retirement ohligations. Please see Note 22 for the related balances.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assels

The Company reviews the carving amounts of deferred tax assets at each end of the reporting
period and reduces it to the extent that it is no longer prabable that sufficient taxable income will
be available 1o allow all or pant of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Company looks at its
projécted performance in assessing the sufficiency of future taxable income.

The Company recognized deferred tax assets smounting 1o P64,456,125 and P60,904.340 as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 23]

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consisis of:

2016 2015
Cash on hand and in banks P160.303,733 B145,062,920
Short-tenm deposits 414,877,862 173,960,601

P584,181,595 B319,023.511

Cash in banks earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates, Shon-term deposits are money
market placements maturing three {3) months or less from the date of acquisition, but with varying
periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company and earn interest at the
rates ranging from 0.75% to 2.5% in 2016 and 0.73% to 1.123% in 2015,
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Short-term Investments

Short-term investments gmounted to P34,881,781 and P47.861,037 as of December 31, 2016 and
1015, respectively,

Shori-term investments are money market placements made far varying periods of more than three
{3} months and up 10 six (6] months and eam interest at the respective shori-lerm InvesIment raies.

Insurance Receivables - Net

This aceount consists of:

1016 anla

Due from brokers and agents B452.645,714  EIB0.046,889
Due from ceding companies 3,095.422 f.344,146
Funds held by ceding companies £.281,913 4.961,130
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 19,120,923 25,876,974
481,046,982 424,129,139

Less allowance for doubiful accounts 23,553,713 26,071,994

$458,493,259 P30E.057.165

The following table shows aging infermation of insurance receivables:

December 31, 2016
I41 days and
| te 30 days 31 bo 00 days  Flio LHI days THLE0 240 days ahove Tkl
Due Trem brokers and sgents FrrE11,732 WINSAZL,TES R TILAE  P5ST6ATI F23.503305  R4R1EE T
Dige TFom ceding oo prinies . 1.561,267 2412500 pL R - 1558411
Funds hold by cedizg mmpanles e - SIR1.013 . . 5,281,013
Beinsmramce recoverible am
paid josses 114,764 LI43.019 ERLTEY 1,986,449 13838039 19,130,813

Fi3, 716406 F186.128,03 F150. 465,614 P23 347 577 B4 435040 RIRBESET

December 31, 2015

T4 | devs and

§ 1o 30 davs 31 e Pl dmes 810 180 davs 13100 340 dans gV Tmal

Crap from heokers and sgeris PATcna14)  BIA5R1A3E  BIOS3Te4] B30,221 003 RI3 515759 PO LR L

Enie from cadmg companies 257,66 53,616 3052687 /3 159 FRCE B & 344 144

Funds keld by cadisg compansss - - 4961, 150 - - 4,851,150
Teinsurinee recoviable on paid

losses 282 507 4413, 6K 1AMA10 454 438 l!,I][!lI.:i]l _:_j,:l':' 474

Paltde 477 BRI TEEIE  BI1A0I4S1T ?I'-IIIH_.SI}! F.'iEI-]ﬁ'i.ﬂ-'i‘ﬂ HH_.E?.H'?
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The folléwing is a reconciliation of the changes in allowance for doubtful accounts for insurance
receivables:

December 31, 2016
Due from Due from Reinsurance
hrokers ceding recaverabile
and agents Companies on_paid fosies Total
At Janunry 1, 2006 0,953 010 B AT0202 P14.605, 782 Bi6,071,594
Reversals during the year {Mofe 21 1,133,866 1 439.374] DE8.030 3,518,271
At December 31, 2016 #8.57E054 3,018 Flﬁﬁﬁ&*ﬁl FI.“.IE!B‘TIE-
Individually imprired PI49,742 - #14,189,432 P14,539,174
Collectively impalred (recovered 522011 0518 538,680 3,014,549
EE,A71,055 BI0.918 il]_ﬁ!ﬂﬁ Br 883 723
December 31, 2013
Dise from DPue from Reinsurazce
brokers seding recaverabls
and agents Comparies on paid lodses Total
At Jamuary 1, 2013 PO Sh1 406 P47 554,450 #13.712.139 B0 R0 000
[mpairment {reverszls) during the
year {Hote 21 432514 {46,084, 164} 291,43 (4, 738 DT
.-_"ﬂ_T."El:tmﬂ 1, 2015 B 903 82 Bi 470,292 BELA05,TR2 P26.171.904
Individualy impairsd 104 16D P- B1562) 183 #k, 004 552
Cotlectively impaired 7.601.551 1. 470152 GE5. 5940 F3,057,442
B G495 420 Fl .-1.'-ﬂ£5‘1 14,605,752 26,071,594
Financial Asscts

The Company’s financial assets are summarized by measurement categories as follows:

2016 2015
AFS financial assets ®1,260,020,568  P935,060,108
Loans and receivables 2,673,913 2,277,057

P1,262,694,481 P942.246,165

AR



S8

The assers included in each of the categories shove are detailed below:

a) AFS financial arsets

2016 215
Quoted securities - at fair value
Lizted equity securitics:
Common shares B214,771,749 P146.640,30¢
Preferred shares 276,095,880 247,134,100
Club shares 3,500,000 3,000,000
Government debt securities - local currency 301,503,381 355 BER 412
Private debt securities 464,129,558 187,286,197
Non-guoted securities - at cost
Unlisted equity securities:
Common shares 20,000 20,000
Total AFS financial assets recognized in the
statements of financial position £1.260,020,568 B010.965,108
Quoted securities - at cost or amortized cost
Listed equity securities
Common shares - net of allowance for
impairment loss of 84,337,652 B223, 774,603 RB14R 407,317
Preferred shares 261,887,500 230,773,737
Club shares 1,600,000 1,606, 000
Crovernment debt securities - bocal cumrency 327 828,910 370,925 065
Private debt securities 479 640,000 186,770,000
Mon-guoted securities - at cost
Unlisted equity securities:
Common shares 24,000 20,000
Total AFS financial assets at cosi
ar amortized cost FE1,294,7581,012 BO3E.456,119

As of December 31, 2016 and 20135, the unrealized gains (losses) in respect of AFS financial
assefs recorded in equity amounted to (P34.730,445) and P 452 989, respectively.

The rollforwerd of revaluation reserve on AFS financial assets foliows:

20164 20145
As of January 1 #1,492,989 B14.017.511
Oher ecomprehensive income:
Changes in fair value of AFS financial assets (15,587,824) (22,012,648)
Impaimment loss 2,719,164 B,726,203
Realized loss (gain) on sale of AFS financial
ASSErS (13.354,874) 761,923
(36,223,434} {12,524,522)
As of December 31 (F34.730,445) B| 292 5989
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The carrving values of AFS financial assels have been determinied as follows:

2016 2015
At January 1 £939,969,108 peB4,329,483
Additions 2,156,005 921 1:‘35:474--{15
Disposals/maturities (1,911,214,500) (1.8 58,349,682}
Amortization of bond 847 862 517,230
Fair value loss charged against other comprehensive
IMEoIme (25,587.824) (22,012 ,645)
At Decernber 31 $1,260,020.568 P939,969.108
B} Loans and receivables
This account consists of the following:
1016 20135
‘Accounts recervables (see Note 24) 2,181,943 B1,582 804
Intercompany accounts receivables
{see Notes 24 and 13) - 118,877
Miscellaneous receivables (see Note 24} 491,270 §75.376
¥2,673.913 £2,277.057

Aiscellaneous receivables account includes employees” loans, social security system (553)
receivables and documentary stamp tax (DST) receivanles. Loans granted 1o employees are
nan-interest bearing and pavable 1o the Company within one year through payroll deduction.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s outstanding loens and receivables are all
due within one year.

& Accrued Income

Aceroed income consists of interest reccivablie amounting to 8,854,071 and 86,894,304 as af
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which periains mainly to interest accrued arising from
cash end cash equivalents, AFS debt securities and contributions 1o the security fund.

0, Heinsurance Assels

This account consists of the follewing:

2016 2015

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses
(see "um: 14} P155 680 300 B115.028 B84
Deferred reinsurance premivms (see Note 14) 01,550,665 07,652,762

F348,248,074  P412,681 646
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1 0. Deferred Acquisition Costs and Deferred Reinsurance Commissions

Deferved Acquisirion Cosls
The rellfsrward enalysis of this accoant follows:

2016 2015
At January | B156,750,945 B136,138,571
Costs deferred during the vear 381,300,809 345,480,712
Amortization during the year {363,157,934) (324.877,338)
At December 31 P174,893.820 B156,750,945
Dhejerred Reinsurance Camirissions
The roliforward analysis of this account follows:
2016 2013
At January 1 P13.389,614 14,836,371
Inceme deferred during the vear 17090336 26,711,793
Amortization during the vear (29,315,439 (28,158,550}
At December 31 £l 1,154;1] B13,389.614
11, Property and Equipment - Met
The rallferward analysis of this aceount follows:
December 31, 2016
DMTice
Furnliare,
Ternsporiakion Luseinkd Computer  Fichares a2d
Equipment  Improiemeis Equipment _Equipment Building Tial
Cost
.l::] pnuary 1, 2006 Bid,448,524 FTEEERET PELEIRTT AL PoTsI 000 PELO3RTTD
Additoms 42337519 - 2,143 564 EEL31B - 1213401
Trispaacals {2024.55) - (39,235.749) {2 510) - [41.376.8246)
At Dezember 31, 2016 15661 AHS TAGENI! 1581491 TA5508) DIEL000  BhATRIA]
Accumulnbed deprecintian
anil amaortizatios
A January 1, B 11055118 T2R%33% 9,962,108 5h12.054 L30T 152 Té 1277
Depreckatian FI6M6T 25,013 1446577 271,298 AHT 500 FAETIEL
Diisgusals (Nete 21 {1,057 BEE) - 39238347 @377} - (41198951}
At December 31, 2016 11,0k24.297 7,545,448 LZ, 190 838 5 161,533 1.6M.T41 J8.A16,104
et book valac as of
Teecember 31, M6 F!.ﬁ]‘fllﬁ PIL 640 3652654 P1e93.551 BT 155208 PI8ASS.24T
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Drecember 31, 2015

CHies
Fumitrs,
Transpenmion Leasehald Compuigr  Froues and _
Equagsiznt EmENS Eqipmer Equipenznt Buildig Tata
L
E:m:lwr:a 1, 2016 fi3, 444 223 p1.720308  BRROET.S pg A2 6% POTIDO00  PRG20I2ET
Addions G653, 731 §48, 79 LiL1420 A6 - 1,368,343
Dasposald {840,032 - [L44,541) {18.300) - (E20.ETL
e Tececba 11,3008 T3 40,534 TRe] 52921877 TIE] 1 Bao0000 91038116
A1 Lecemt
Acpmmulatel depreslabon
md amoriseation
AL Fumary |, 2016 10,661 654 695,533 HITIN 5,124 R04 1,719,782 JLMLEI0
Dheprecialion | f54.543 173550 1,588,111 fié, 141 487,500 4,063,204
Disposals Mot 21) B0 - - 175910 - {618.000)
A Deceroer 31, 2018 [EECEE Y, IR0, 532 10 9L 02 5.h11054 2307252 76,117,704
Wcq book value ns of
Deeember 11, 1016 P2302.406 Pt 154 PLSL0RIT i 4353310 Pl ¥ 14,911,071

Depreciation expense charged against operations amounted 10 B3.68
and 2015, respectively (see Note 21),

7,152 and P4,063,204 in 2018

_ Imtangible Asset

The roliforward analysis of this account fol bowvs:

2016 2015
At January | BH,114.286 $8.114.286
Additions 548,676 -
Write-off (8,114.286) =
At December 31 PEAR,676 24,114,286

At the end of 2016, the Comp
management has come 0 this
support the operations of the Company, hence,

any wrote ~off

the software purchased back in 2012, The
decision after assessing that the said software will not be able 10

no future cconomic benefits.

. Dither Assels

This aceount consists of;

pLIRL 7al5

Cr:-lﬁb_ibl: withholding tax P13,085,218 B12.4149031
Deposits 9.966,731 8,777,916
Claims fund 1.137.162 2,137,163
Prepaid expenses 69,795 535,000
Security fund 70,715 70,7135
B15.110 631 P23,455, 715

TRV
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14, Insurance Contract Liabilities and Relosurance Assets

Short-term nonlife insurance liabilities may be analyzed as follows:

Heindurers' Beinurers’
lesurance thare of Insurasce share of
rontrac limbilities Wet i [rr = lmbiigies o= |
. : liahilities {5et Wate 1) e Figkditias [Hee Moke 7] 2015
Provision fin cluing eeported
mad 55 adjustment
xprscs FOTRONA, LSS PISLSAZE00  P4BG 135427 P6234%50.55 FIG3 102 506 B3T0330.050
EI"."'I-'I'III!'II. ot [RNRE bomsps 15!,'5'“'!1“ 63,736.933 08,251 007 126,703, T60 BEHOGITE M.'.'H:EHI
Total claims reponed and
IBNE B3 057,133 I555HIND BELNETHE4  TSOUSE3I6 315028884 435017412
Provasan or mngarmed
premiums T16 LR A0 WI,559,665 B354, 741 501,826,135 21652 ThI =H 173173
Tatal Inswramee conlrect
linhilities PlA03.261.549 PHEMEMY #215002.566 PLITISEL44T  B417 &E] 646 PR 00 EE
Pravisions for claims reported by policyholders and IBNR may be analyzed es follows:
Reinsorers” Heinpunsrs”
lnsarance share of Inzuremze share of
ennsrast liabsiligies Net fe-lir lishilicies Telel
HaEElities {Fer e 5 2815 liahilities {zee Motz W) 2015
h‘.Jl.r.lJ..I-r}- | : FIERISE3E PISKIEEN  P435127432 PTIIASS B0 RAdRoTO I PIRSIEEOER
Claines incumred faring the yeur 5214939946 4084306 @75 301680 222448674 3038440 JEEAIZIN
Claires paid dumiag the year -
net od salvage and
sabrdaiee fiee Matn 200 (UEOHE0.340F (1070044860 (ITNS1SBEN)  (AIT0O0E3E1D (174R0E A1 (251,31 10,020)
Incregse i IE™R{ece Moie 211 32,245,220 | ARL60S 434,61 11,262.218 (1,271,207 I 2 a4, 126

At December 51 PEIVO87.135 @ 1309  PSELERET.RIE  BTE0 154 316

P3]5.028.8R4 P43 127432

Provision for unearned premiums may be analyzed as follows:

Brinsurers' Reinsirers
Insurance skare of lnsurence sharneof
ceniracd linhitigies ] contract linhiligizs Ne
lishilitics {moc Nz 3 ik Ligbilities ez Wone 0 s
As Famuary | P01 S3E 138 POT 50782 PR04,07337F  PSIATRTASL  BGEOSRTAS BHAS7 1M
Mgw palicies writen during
the veer (5ec Mede [E) 1.580,744,521 3T6 592,380 1, 204,152,141 1,340,847 364 Il T A RARAI0. 240
Premiems eamed during the
weis (aee Hots 1) {1,456, 566.249)  (381.685.477) (LATHGS0TTY) (1,255 8095800 (B9LI65.602) (B A435TH)
Ad Theeembser 31 PY26204407 RO 880 A6S  WEISEL47ar  PRDIEIG I35 U576 PS04 17337
I3, Insurance Fayables
This actount consiss of
2016 2015
Due to reinsurers and ceding companies
{see Notz 24) 210,939,405 P55.867,244
Funds held for reinsurers (s2e Note 24) (41,182) 199,804
EI0.898,223 Fi6.0a7.048
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The rollforward analysis of insurance payables follows:

Due to reinsurers
and ceding Funds held
©O M ranies for reinsurers Toral
Al January 1, 2015 P0.5230 830 13,200,045 P44 130,873
Arising during the yeiar §1,22%, K19 (13,000,241} 68228 378
Utilized [56,293,405) - (56,292,405
At December 31, 2015 55,867,244 P99 B4 36,067,048
Arising during the yvear 52,221,809 {244,986) 21,081,503
Lirilized (87,150.718) = (&7, 154, T18)
At December 31, 2006 EI0,939.405 (F41,152) Bi0.598,113
16, Accounts Pavable and Other Liabilities
Thizs aecount consists of;
2016 20015
Value added tax (WAT) payable Fi114.832 024 BOI BEEZON
Commission pavable 121,714,743 07,215,035
Acecounts payable 83,464,193 T1;312,185
Withholding taxes pavable 64,276,336 0,734,503
Documentary stamp tax (DST) payable 12351379 BIT7.336
Taxes payable 11,595,552 8.505250
Accrued expenses 5,275,460 6,284,798
Cithers 3,370,252 1,169.270
B426,180.875_ P3280716.577
Dithers include loans and salary contributions pavable,
17, Capital Stock
The Company’s capital stock consists of:
26 013
Shares Amount Shares Amount

Authorized: Comman stock
B1.00D par value

300,000 B300,000,000

300,000 #300,000,000

Issued and outstanding:

At h:gnnin EJ:nd of vear

300,000  EA00,000,000

300,000 B300.000.000

On September 23, 201 6, the Company's BOD approved the proposed increase in authorized
capital stock from 300,000 shares at B1,000 par value or P300,000,000 to 1,300,000 at #1,000 par
value or P1,300,000,000. In connection with the said increase in authorized capital stock, the
company received cash amounting to BI00 000,000 from shareholders as pavment for future stock
subscription of the proposed increase in capital stock. As of December 31, 2016, the Company
has a pending application with SEC for the increase in authorized capital stock.

ARLRTERTAE AR
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18, Net Insurance Earned Premiums

(ross earned premiums on insurance contracts and reinsurers’ share of gross eamed premiums on

insurance coniracts consist of the following:

2016 2015
(Gross premiums on INSUrane? contracts:
Direct insurance P1,427.969,187 Bl,169,645.79]
Assumed reinsurance 152,775,334 171,202,073
Total pross premiums on insurance contragts
(zee Note 14) 1. 580,744,511 |,340,847 864
{irass change in provision for uneamed premiums (124,378,272) (85,038,184)
Total gross earned premiums on insurance
contracts (see Note 14) 1,456, 366,249  1,255.809.580
Reinsurers” share of gross premiums on insurance
cntracts:
Direct insurance 117,830,040 227.519.798
Azsumed reinsurance 158,762,340 |64,407.817
Total reinsurers’ share of gross premiums on
insurance contracts (see Note 14) 176,592,380 191,927 515
Reinsurers’ share of gross change in provision for
uneamed premiums 5,093,097 417087
Total reinsurers’ share of gross earned
premiums on insurance contracts
(see Note 14) 351,685477 3192 365.602
Total net insurance earned premivms
[see Note 14) P1,074,680,772 E363, 443978
19, Investment and oiher income (expense) - Met
This account consgists of.
016 2013
Interest income on:
AFS financial assets P17,428,417 P18,667.645
Cash and cash equivalents 31,841,406 3,274,158
Security fund 13311 -
Dividend income 23,434,548 17,184,573
Foreign exchange gain - net 2.311,200 6,734,165
Gain {loss) on sale of:
Property and equipment (Note 11) 776,909 159,997
AFS financinl assets (Mote 7) 13,354,874 {761,913)
Impairment loss (Note 7) i2,719,264) {8,726,203)
Crthers {236,866) 6,110,991
P68,214,.543 Pa2.643 433
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20, Wet Imsurance Benefits and Claims

Gross insurance contract benefits and claims paid consist of the following:

- 2016 20135
Insurance contract benefits and claims paid:

Direct insurance P437,435,859 411,571,269

Assumed reinsurance 24,424,490 25.437.112
Total insurance contract benefits and

claims paid (see MNote 147 P66 850,349 2437008381

Reinsurers” share of gross insurance contract benafits and claims paid consist of the following:

2016 2013
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract benefits
and claims paid:
Diirect insurance B45,028.265 P41,371,250
Assumed reinsurance 621,306,221 134,327,111
Total reinsurers’ share of insurance contraci
benefite and claims paid (zee MNaote [4) FI07,334 486 #175,658.161
Gross change in insurance contrac liabilities:
2016 2015
Change itn provision for claims reported

(see Note 14}

Direct insurance P56,141,676 B7.247310H

Azsumed reinsurance (1,506,079) (7.320,393)
Change in pravision for [RNE 32,265220 11,268219
Total pross change In insurance contract

liabilities 286,900,817 (P3,200 484)

Reinsurers’ share of gross change in insurance contract liabilities:
016 2013
Rensurers” share of gross change in insurance

contractliabilities (see Note 14);

Direct insurance (B61,170,180) [(®141,669921)
Reinsurers” share of change in provision for IBNR 1,830,605 {1,371.907)
Total reinsorers’ share of gross change in

insurance contract liabilities (BS0 30 575y (B143,041 8BIR)

AER WA



- 36 -

21. Operating Expenses and Other Underwriting Expense

This aceount codsists oft

| § 2015
Salaries and emplovee benefirs (see Note 22) P38,997,824 B78.417.033
Chutside services 18,218,019 27,065,048
Rent B 10,381,106 2006, 108
Advertising and promotion 8.555471 6,422,323
C-:In‘:mun[catﬁ:m, light and water 6,992 043 120,137
Printing and office supplies 6,482,658 5,740,242
Repairs and maintenance 6,264,016 5,108,437
Taxes and licenses 5,538,572 3.063 464
Trinsportation and travel 4,695,940 4,007, 788
Diepreciation [8ee Mafe i1} 3687352 4,063,204
Entertainment, emusement and recreation 3560416 2,637,054
Agency foes 2614002 2,431,200
Director’s fees 1,736,667 1,776,667
Insurance 1,346,271 1,151,858
Frovision for allowance for doubtful aceounts
{see Note 6) (LS18271)  (44,758,007)
Write-off of saffware 8,114,286 -
Miscellaneous 7378216 1,218,935
Total DEnﬁnE Fxpenses P151.043,418 RB120.563.371

Other underwriting expenses amounted 1o F12,790.345 and P13,816.142 in 2016 and 2013,
respectively, These Ecnerally pertain to the Company’s share of the administrative and
miscellaneous expenses reporied by Philippine Accident Managers, Inc. and overseas Filipino
workers' acoounis,

22, Retirement Plan

The Company has a finded, moncontributory, defined benefit pension plan covering substantially
all of its regular employees. The plan provides a Tetirement benefit equal to one hundred percent
{100%) of Plan Salary for every vear of Credited Service plus Retirement Bonus, if any. The plan
is administered by & local bank as trusiee,

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income and the amounts recognized in the statement of financial

pasition,

Pension Expense

26 205
Current service cost P4,131,639 P3,368 192
Net interast cost 155,807 245,526
Total pension expense P4,287,446 Ri613.718
Actual return on plan assets PT46.475 2403171

ANEUCRUSTT A
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Remeaswwement Effects 1o be recogmized in OCT

_ 2014 2015
Actuarial loss on obligation (F317,172)  (P3,538,074)
Bemeasurement loss on plan asset {336, 764) {537.619)
Total amount to be recognized in O] (P1,153.936) (P4.076,593)
Accumuiated other comprehensive incoms - mes aof deferved tax
- 2016 2015
H-:Eumif[all:li D!:L beginning (B7,703,567) (B4.670,610]
Recognized during the year (507,755) (3,032,957
Accumulated OCL, end (8,511,323)  (#7.703.567)
Retirewment Benefit liabiliey - net
26 20135
Benefit obligation B41.262.705 B35.274 757
Plan assets (37,390,708 27 584 445
Deficit BA.ET1.910 PToo0311
Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
2016 2015
Opening defined benefit ebligation P35,274,757 #27.330,115
Current service cosl 4,131,639 3,368,192
Interest cost 1,739,046 1,276,316
Actuarial loss on obligation NTIT2 3,518974
Benefits paid (199.909) {238,840
At end of yvear P41,262,705 £33,2'74.757
Changes in fair value of plan assets are as fallows:
16 2018
Opening fair value of plan assets B27,584, 446 B17.033,88%
Interest income 1,583,239 1,030,794
Contributions 9,259,783 10,276,226
Actuarial loss (836,764) (337.619)
Benefits paid {199,909 (238,840}
At end of vear #37.300,7935 P27 584 d46

The following is the distribution of the Company”™s plan assets at fair value as of December 31-

2016 2015
Cash in bank P11.071,414 BL2.301.271
Units investinient trust fund - 453 762
Government debt 2scirities 16,087,558 14,352,187
Cithers 231,823 237,226
Tatal plan aszets E3T7.390,795 BIT7.584 446
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The principal assumptions used to determine pension benefits for the Company are as follows:

2016 2015
Discount rute 5,000 4930
Expected salary rate increase 7.00% LR

Eernsitivities
The sensitivity analysis below has besn determined based on ressonably possible changes of each

significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end ol the reporting period,
assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

2016
Impauct on present valoe of
Change in defined benefit obligation Percentage
variables Increase {Decrease) thange
Discount race +100 bps (B3,055,078) {7.4%)
=100 bps 3,487,763 85
Salary increase rate =100 bps P3,060,622 T 4%
~100 bps (2,750,467) (6.7}
2015
Impact on present value of
Change in defined benefit obligation Fercentage
variabies Increase (Decrease) chanpe
Discount rate +100 bps 2,806,964) {8.0%4)
-100 bps 3211644 .1
Salary increase rate +100 bps P2R32.234 8.0%
-100 bps (2.54]1,511) (7.2)

The Company does not expect any contribution to the plan for next accounting period.

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 03 and 10,5 vears in 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Maturity profile of the expected future benefit payments are as follow:

Financial Year Amount
Year ] B5 003 588
Year2 —
Yeard 343,470
Year 4 #426321]
Year 3 |,618.833
Year 6 to Year 10 23010107
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22 Inecome Tex
The components of the Company s net deferred tax asset consist of the tax effects of the
Following:
2016 2015
Deferred rtax assets on:
IBME. - met R15.647.177 B15,047177
Excess of provision for unearned premiums per
books over per tax hasis 35,301,968 27.944 0p7
Deferred reinsurance commissions 1340353 4,016,884
Allowance for doubtful accounts 6,766,117 7.821,598
Pension obligation 3,391,510 3,045,329
WNOLCD - 2428388
Tatal deferred tax asseis 64,456,125 6,204, 330
Dreferred tax liabilities on:
Deferred acquisition costs 52,463,146 47,025 283
Excess of deferred reinsurance premiums
per books over tax basis 3,915,682 4,960,519
Unrealized foreign exchange gain 693,362 2,020,249
Total deferred tax liabilities S7.077,1%0 54015050
MNet deferred tax as5e1s BTATE.035 #6,889 250

The table below shows the temporary differences for which no deferred income tax assets have
been set up because the Company believes that there will be no sufficient future taxable profit

against which the benefit from these can be utilized,

= 2016 2015
Prowvision for IBNR - pet B43,074,741 P12,640,126
NOLCO - 0,375,646
Unamortized past service cost 13,435,870 10,506,470
Accrued expense 3453316 1,717,030
Excess MCIT - 5.217.286
Pension obligation - net {7,433,124) (2,460,787)

At of December 31, 2016, the Company has claimed all NOLCO and MCIT as deduction from the

taxahle profit:

The movements of NOLCD are as follows:

2016 2015
At January | F14,470,265  P83,103,739
Applied (14,470,263)  (70,633,476)
At December 31 P-  PI4470.263
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The movements of MCIT arc as follows:

016 2013
At January | BE 217286 B2 701,014
Additions - 3,634,199
Expired - (1,118,029}
Applied (5.217.286) -
At December 31 o B5.217.286

The reconciliation of pretax income at statutory income tax rate to effective income tax follows;

Z0l6 2015
Tax at etatutory income tax rate 30,670,291 B12.049.99]
Add (deduct) tax effects of:
Dividend income (7,030, 364) (5. 155.372)
Interest income subjected to final tax (4,865,551) (4,249,323)
Lods (gain) on sale of AFS financial assets (1,877,7a0) 228,577
Final tax paid £.359,592 4,860 849
Nondeductible expenses 1.101.984 2,087,533
Change i unrecognized deferred tax assets 1,908,404 (4.393.878)
Effective income tax FITETEE,EEIII B16,337 377

24, Manzgement of Capital, Insurance and Financial Risks

Govermance Framework

The primary objective of the Company's risk and financial management framewaork 15 10 ensure
thet the risks related to the Company are managed through g svstematic and consistent nsk
management process. The Company recognizes the critical importance of having efficient and
effective risk management systems 1n place.

The Company is guided by its standard operating procedures and internal control procedures
designed to ensure attainment of the Company objective, More so it is strongly backed up by its
strong treaty agreements, which more or less limits the risk aceeptance.

The Company has already outlined its risk management manual and is for endorsement to the Risk
Management Committes for approval. Said manual clearly outlines the structure of the Risk
Management Organization and defines integral role of cach position. 1t dlso states reportorial
requirements and processes,

The Risk Management Committee is composed of not less than (3) members of the Board
whereas, the Chief Underwriting Technical is appointed as the Risk Champion. To serve as
member of the arganization, the head of each department are automatically called the Risk Owner.

Risk Chwners are task to conduct regular identification, evaluation and review of the risk factors of

their respective department through semi-annual submission of risk scorecards. The same shall be
used as basiz of reporting to the Board of Directors,
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Regulatory Framework

Regulators are interested in protecting the nghts of the policyholders and maintain close vigil to
ensure that the Company is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the
regulators are also interested in ensuring that the Company maintains appropriate solvency
position 1o meet liabilities arising from <laims and that the risk levels are at scceptable Jevels.

The operations of the Company are subject to the regulatory requirements of the Insurance
Commission (IC). Such regulations not enly prescribe approval and monitoring aof activities but
also impose certain restrictive provisions (g [ixed capitalization requirements and risk-based
capital requirements).

Capital Management Framework

The Company maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and o
adequately protect the policyholders. The level of capital maintained is usually higher than the
minimum capital requirements s21 by the regulalors as imposed under Department of Finance
Order (DO 27-06 and the amount computed under the Risk Based Capital (RBC) Madel,

The Company reviews the capital requiraments throu gh manthly computation of the RBC which is
regularly communicated to the major shareholders. With this procedure, shareholders are
farewamed in anticipation of the IC requirements of additional capital infusion. Shareholders are
well updated with these exiernally imposed copital requirements since these are being discussed
during annual BOD meeting. Evidently they have ghown their commitment to comply with this
regulation, same as prior years when they willingly infused additional cash as the need arises.

Fixed Capitalization Requirements

On August 15, 2013, the President of the Philippines approved Republic Act No. 10607 1o be
known as the “New Insurance Code™ which provides the new capitalization requirements for all
existing insurance companics based on nel worth on a stagzered basis starting June 30, 2003 vp fo
December 31, 1022, The following presents the amount of required set worth and the schedule of
compliance per New Insurance Code:

Networth Compliance date
£250,000,000 June 30, 2013
SE0, 00,000 December 31, 2016
900,000,000 December 31, 2019
[, 3000, (0, 000 December 31, 2022

Based on its latest synopsis issued by the Insurance ommission as of December 31, 2015, the
sudited statutory networth of the Company amounted to P375,354 885 as of December 31, 2013.

Unimpaired capital requirement

The issuance of 1C CL No, 2015-02-A, superseding 1C CL No. 22-2008, is provided 10 ensure the
compliance set in Sections |94, 197, 200 and 189 of Republic Act No. 10607 to have minimum
capitalization and networth. Tt says that all domestic life and non-life insurance companies duly
licensed by the Insurance Commission must have a networth of at least five hundred and fifty
million pesos (F550,000,000) by December 31, 2016 and the minimum networth of these
companies shill remain unimpaired at all times.

In December &, 2016, the Company™s major sharcholder MAA International Assurance Lid, has
infused fresh capital of B300,000,000. As & result, the Company”s unimpaired capital &5 of
December 31, 2016 is P600,000,000 with a networth of P675,354,885 based on its latest SYDOpSis,

exceeding the B530,000.000 requirement by £125 154 885 excluding the resulis of operaticns for
201&,
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In tha interim, the $300,000.000 fresh capital was booked as D&Pusit fior Fulrurc S'n:u:.:k :
Subszeription under the equity section 48 the Company's application for the increase in its
sutherized capital i still pending approval from SEC,

Financlal Reporting Framework

O December 28, 2016, 1C issued Circular Mo, 2016-65 relatitig to financial reporting framewerk
under section 189 of the Republic Act No. 10607 10 be known as the “New [nsurance Code™ 10
clarify the rules and regulations concerning Titles Ii1 and IV of Chapter 11 of the New Insurance
Code and all the other acCoumts Nl discussed fn the New Insurance Code but are used in
aceounting of insurance and reinsurance companies. The circular enumerated the list of admitied
and non-admitted assets and investments, I includes the manual of aceounts which enumerates
certain admitted assets not specifically listed {n Sestion 202 of the New Insurance Code. The
manual of accounts discusses the nature, TYpes and recognition and measurement of each account
in the financial statement.

The circular shall take effect beginning January 1, 2017, The quarterly reports shall be submitted
within twa (2) months after the end of each reporting period while annual report will be due 30th
April of the succeeding year.

Yalaation Standards for Policy Reserves

Pursuant to Sections 219 and 220 of the Amended Insurance Code (Republic Act No. 60T
which require every insurance company other than life to maintain a reserve for ureamed
premiums and other special reserves, IC issued Circular No, 2016-67 which provides the new 5ol
of Valuation sandards for Non-Life Insurance Policy Reserves.

The Circular sets out the valuation method to be used by Insurance Companies mn determining the
level of reserves that they should maintain, Premium reserve will be aligned with the current
practice under PFRS. Claims reserve specifically on TENR will now be actuarially computed and
an actuarial report must be submitted 1o 1C following the report format provided in the said
Circular. The actuarial report must include the certification of the Actuary and Chief Executive
Dfficer (CEQ) or responsible officer and must be duly notarized.

The implementation requirements will be relaxed on the initial year which starts January 1, 2017.
UPR shall be set up instead of the higher of UPR and URR while Margin for Adverse Deviaiion
{ MfaD)} shall be set at zero. It shall be company specific instead of the proposed 10% across all

classes of business. Whereas, starting 201 8 the premium liahilities shall be determined in
accordance with the valuation standards.

Risk-based Capital Reguirements

The following table shows the RBC ratio as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 using the old RRC
template under Stetuiory method of computation:

2016 2015
Net wc-rﬁl_ BI96,453,054 P377.402,8338
RBC requirement 662,297,805 336,414,432
EBC Eatio 167 % 112%
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In December 28, 2016, IC has released a new guideline thrw its Circular Letier no. 2016-68,
amending the Risk-Based Capital (RBECI) Framework. In the new framework, 1C adopted the
three (3) pillar risk-based approach 1o solvency which comprised the following:

a) Pillar | includes the quantitative requirement in relation to the caleulation of capital
requirements and recognition of eligible capital. Unlike the oid RBC framework wherely the
networth was used to divide the RBC requirement, in the new framework it is the total
available capital (TAC). It s the capital that is required 10 be held appropriately to the nsks an
insurance company is exposed to.

by Pillar 2 covers the governance and risk management requirément that consist of a supervisory
review pracess which mey inelude supervisory adjustment to capital; and

¢) Pillar 3 comprises the disclosure requirements designed to encourage market discipline,

Same as the financial reporting framework and valuation, the insurance company is required 1o
accomplish and submit three (3) quarterly reports dire two {2) months afier the end of each quarter
and 30th of Apsil for the 3181 December annual reporting.

All insurance companies are required to maintain the minimum RBC ratio of 1 00% and not fail
the tend test based on their quarterly and annual submissions. Failure wo mees the minimum RBC

will be required to submit a report explaining the cause of failure and a management plan of
achions:

Under Section 3 of the Circulas, Company Action Event shall accur if the RBC ratio of the
company is less than 100% but not below 75%. Should this event occur, the company shall file to
the Commissicner within fifteer {13) days of the event an RBC plan that shall:

a)  Identify the conditions that contributed to the event;

b) Contain proposals of corrective action that the company intends 1o take and that would be
expected to result in the climination of the event;

¢)  Provide projections of the company’s Annual Statements for at least two years with and
without the proposed corrective actions; including but not limited to projections on the
balance sheets, analysis of operations {total), surplus accounts, RBC Exhibits and Tines of
business information relevant 1o the RBC plan;

d)  ldentify the key assumptions impacting the compuny’s projections and the sensitivity of the
projections to the assumptions; and

e) Identify the quality of, and problems associated with, the company's business, including but
not limited 1o its assets, anticipated business growth, surplus strain, extraordinary exposure o
risk, mix of business and use of reinsurance, if any, in each case.

The Commissioner shall natify the company within thirty (30) days upon submission of the RBC
plan whether it shall be implemented or is unsatisfactory. In the later case the Commission shall

include reasons for the determination and proposed revisions to the RBC plan, and the company
shall resubmit the RBC plan within 1en (10] days of notice.

The final RBC ratio can only be determined after the accounts of the Company have been
examined by IC,
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Insurance Risk

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will aceur including the
uncertainty of the amount and timing of any resuling claim. The principal risk the Company
faces under such contracts is that the actual ¢laims and benefit payments exceed the camying
amount of insurance linbilities, This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of clams,
when actual benefits paid are greater than originally estimated and subsequent development of
long-term claims.

The Company principally issue the fallowing types of general insurance contracts: fire, motar,
health and aceident, aviation/ull, marine, engineering. professional indemnity, bonds, fidelity
guarantes and surety, Risks under general insurance policies usually cover twelve month duration.

For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from climate changes, natural
disasters and terrorist activities.

These riske vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Company, type
of risk insured and by industry, Undue concentration by amounts can have 2 further impact on the
severity of benefit payments on a portfolio basis,

The shove rigk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance
comtracts and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and
implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed 1o ensure that risks are diversified
in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through
diversification scross industry sectors and geography. Further, strict ¢laim review policies to
assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and
frequent investigation of possible fraudulent ¢laims are all policies and procedures put in place ta
reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforce 4 policy of actively
managing and prompt pursuing of claims, in order to reduce iis exposure to unpredictable future
developments that can negatively impact the Company.

The Company has also limited its exposurs by imposing maximum claim amounts on ¢ertain
contracts as well gs the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catustrophic
events, for example, hurricanes, earthquakes and flood damages,

The purpose of these underwriting and reinsurance srategies is o ltmit exposure to catastrophes (o
a pre-determined maximum ameunt based on the Company's risk appetite as decided by
management.

The fallowing table sets out the coneentration of the claims liabilities by type of contract:

Déecember 31, 2016
Refmsarers’

Gross Claims Share of Met Claims

Liabilities Claims Liabilities Liabilities

Fir= BI50477 871 P136,025,.913 P214,447.958
Wator 313,959,083 47,532,201 266,436,882
zrine 65,818,453 39,252 306 26,575,147
eneral Acoounis 16,844,657 6,527,462 10,317,338
Bonds 37,895,078 6,416,198 H1. 478,880
Personal Accident 34975472 17,606,417 17,365,055
Enginesring 17,076,479 2,334,312 14,741,667
Tatal PE37,087,133 F155,689,309 ¥581,367,824
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December 31, 2013
Reinaurers”

{Gross Claims Share of et Clairms
Lighilities  Claims Lighiliies Linilitizs

Fire FA72, 366,642 F1O1 584 048 F1ED, 781,600
Motor 220 499287 48,801,393 120,607 504
Mlarine 64,063,941 35,024 463 25, 0130.474
Enginesring 31,644,915 20,254,335 17,629,155
Cieneral Accounis 25,550,614 TH21.448 11,350,580
Bonds 22018333 8193430 2,753,734
Personal Accwdent 5013504 2158 856 13,824 B84
Total RTA0, 156,316 B115,008 884 B435, 127432

Terms and Cenditions
The major classes of general insurance written by the Company include fire, marine, wnd motor
insurance. Risks under these policies usually cover | Z-month duration.

Far general insurance contracts, elaims provisions (comprising provisions for claims reparted by
policvholders and IBNR) are established to cover the ultimate cost of settling the liabilities in
respect of claims that have occurred and are estimated based on known facts at the end of the
reporting period.

The provisions are refined quarterly as part of 2 regular engoing process as claims experience
develops, certain claims are settled and further claims are reported. Dutstanding claims provisions
are not discounted for the time value of money.

Claims provisions are separately analyzed by class of business. In addition, larger claims are
usually either separately assessed by loss adjusters, The claims projection assumptions are
generally intended to provide & best estimate of the mast likely or expected outcome.

Assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Company's past claims development
experience. This includes assumplions in respect of average claim costs, claim handling costs,
claim inflation factors and claim numbers for each accident year. Additional qualitative
judgements are used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for
example once off nccurence, ehanges in market factors such as public attitude to claiming,
cconomic conditions, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, pelicy conditions and
¢laims handling procedures.

Judgement is further used to assess the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions
and government legislation affect the estimates, Other key assumptions include variation in
intersst rage, delays in setilement and changes in foreign currency rutes.

Sensitivilies
The general insurance claims provision is sensitve Lo the above key assumptions, The sensitivity

of certain assumptions such as legislative change, uncertainty in the estimation process, ete,, i ot
possible 1o quantify.
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The analysis below is performed for a reasonable possible movement in key assumptions with 2l
other assumptions held constant, on the stalzment of comprehensive income and equity.

December 31, 2016
Chamgs in Imcreass Ingreass 0B Diecrease on Trecrese on
i Issumplinks on grogs [bilities net bl rofl befoere fas Egui
Averige cluim cost +15% PLOL 713,223 FTL326374 (F12.920374) (P31.0464.162)
Average number of
claim= +T0% BT EKEENS 48,h13,583 e REA A (34,829,505
December 31, 2015
Chamjpe m Inzrenss [nerease an Decsease an Decrense oo
assumpkicns o0 gross lishilities el Niahvdlities prafs before tax Eyulty
Averige clam cas 15 P03 51T BB BAA 4G 500 (P33 530.508) (HIE EEL S5E)
Averape number of
clams w]{F £1.345,256 17033008 {37,023,004) {15 023 104)
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Financial Instryments _ :

Due 10 the short-term nature of cash and cash equivalents, shorf-ierm investments, INsUrance
receivables. loans and receivailes, accrued income, insursnce payables, accounts payabie and
commission payable, their carrying values regsonably approximate fair values as at
December 11, 2016 and 20135,

The fair value of financial instruments under AFS thal are actively taded in urgnnfzed financial
markets is determined by reference to guoted market prices wi!hi.n_me bid-offer price range, at the
close of business on the end of the reporting period or the last trading day as applicable.

Fair Valug Hierarchy .
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disciosing the fair values of
financial mstruments by valuation technique:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted] market prices i active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowesl level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is direetly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

The Company classifies its financial assets measured at fair value as follows:

016
Quoted Signilicant Significant
prices in plservable  umebssrvable
active markets inpials nputs

[Level 1) [Loveld 2) {Level 3} Toial

A F% Financial Assets
Listed squity securities

Commaon shares B114,771.740 B B=  EN4TTLTH
Prefierred shares 176095880 - - 276,005,580
Clu' shares 35000 - - 3,500,000
Ciovernmend debt securitics
Loksl curmendy 301,203,351 - F 301503, 381
Frivads debt securities 464,129,553 = = 464,129,558
Total AFS financial asseds FI.IE&.{IB‘D-_.EEI B - FIJ&DIEEEE
2003
Chaoted Signaficant Signiflcar
prices in ohservanle  usabservable
peiive marksts ripeats Itz
{Level I (Level 2 Level ] Taal
AFE Financinl Assets
[isred =quity securities
Common sharss F146,640,399 2 P—  BL4E640359
Prefestad sharss 247 134,100 - - 247,124,100
Chub shiares 3,010, 0} - - 3,005, 00D
Ciovernimens debl secarliles
Local eurmency 155, RAR412 - - A5 8E6.412
Privete debi pecurities __LB7.285.197 = = 187,266,157
Taotal AFS Mnancia] nasets I nad 10f - B ERI09 08
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As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company classifies AFS financial assets under Level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy, except for the unlisted equity securities that do not have quoted |1:Iar1r.-=t
prices in an active market which are measured at cost and hence, not included above, During the
reporting pericd ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were no transfers between Level | and
Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 2 far value measurements.

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial liabilitics and
insurance lisbilities. In particular, the key financiul risk that the Company is exposed to is that the
praceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient to Company the obligations arising from its
msurance contracts. The most important components of this financial risk are credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk.

Credir risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party o a financial mstrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and caise the other party to ingur financial loss.

The Company manzages the level of credit nisk by setting up limits of exposure. Exposure m the
sense that the concentration of its businesses is widespread in scope, in terms of counterparties
invelved, lozation or geographical and industry segments. A counterparty may be subjected fo a
credit investigation prior to enlering inlo a contract considering the financial condition or credit
standing and character of the prospective producer, reinsurer and policy holder,

Regular review of company policies is being conducted to ensure proper monitering of direct and
reinsurance receivables versus payables, The Company reserves the right to offset where
counterparties are both debtors and creditors; cancel policies which are beyond the credit-tarm or
those with lesser probubility of being collzcted and terminate contract which the management
believes 10 be non-productive. Commisaions and claims are likewise being used as leverage 1o
collect from counterparty. In the event of a major loss, the Company is backed up by reinsurers
with strong financiel standing. Reinsurers and agents® portfolio are periodically being rated with
A+ being the highest and B- the lowest.

Although the Company has reinsurance armangements, it is not relieved of 1ts direct obligations 1o
its policvholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent
that any reinsurer may be unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance
agreements. The Company selects only domestic and foreign companies with strong financial
standing and excellent track records which ere allowed to participate in the Company”s

Teinsurance Progranms.

The following table provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company as of
December 31, 2006 and 201 5:

2016 2015
Cash and cash equivalents #584,031 595 P118,883, 521
Ehort-term investments 54,881,781 47.861,037
Insurance receivables:
Due from brokers and agents 452,645,724 2BE,946, 580
Due from ceding companies 3,998,422 6,344,144
Funds held by ceding companies 2.281.8913 4,961,150
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 19,120,923 25,876,074
(Forward}
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2016 2013
Financial assets:
AFS
Equity securitics P454,387,620 #3065 704 400
Debt securities 765,632,930 543,174,600
Loans and receivables
Intercompany receivable = 118,877
Accounts receivable 2,181,943 1,582 804
Miscellaneous receivables 491,970 575,376
Accrued income 5254071 6 E92 394

Total

$2,391,508,010 B1,740,012,276

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company by
classifying assets according to the Company's credit ratings of counterparties.

December 31, 2016
Meilber past dug nar impalred Pait dee
Heeh Weikinm Law l-rlrnEuud 'I"n-'l1_|.|_
Cech and oo equivalents PER4 031505 F- B - BSa403] 395
Shonderm mvestments 24.881.781 - - - 24881781
Insumance recenvables:
Lrae dpoen brokosts aikd ugeni 285233407 - - 19,411,217 4516445, T04
[ from cading companing 1.560.267 - - 1437188 1994 4322
Funds beld by ceding company 3251913 = = = L35E.)
Reinsurance recoverable on paid bouses 1088743 - - 17,061,140 1M
Fasasgial asasts:
ATFE fimancial mxwets
Equity secariies 106 06, Il = - 11136307 117, 231408
Dighs securmizs Th5.R52 90 - - - 75431939
Loas aed receivables:
Imerconpamy recetvahle - - - -
ALCounts Fecsivable 281,543 - 4,181,043
Mescellansoms neotivahles £91,970 - - - 491,970
Apcrued incame AR54.071 S = s - 4,854,071
Tobal P1ART 304837 B FIITAME519 FL114,353.776
December 31, 2015
zither pret due ner maeired Past e
High Mledium Law ot impainsd Total
Cash pnd cash egaivaleats P11B.BE3, 521 [ n. [ TR
Shom-lgrm invesimenis 47.E6 1 0137 - - - AT.EA) 03T
[zsiranse seegivahles.
Che= fram brokens and apens 117,687, 6E6 - - L5 A G M) A86.835 BED
Clae fram cedmg compenisy EOl 4E2 - 5540 654 0,584,148
Famdy held by ceding company 4061, 150 - 25 LGl L0
Fleimuarance recovemabie an paid losses d, 694,275 - - 21,180,659 25,876,574
Financisl 455218
AFS finamenl assels:
Equity securilses L 13 A%5 359 - - £7.111,4%3 1646 5w B33
Db pecurities ST AT 09 - - 430174 50
Loans and receavakics
Inlerconseiny réservihle 11LET? - = - 118.ETT
Anpounis recervible 1561504 - = - L5ELEM
Miscellsneaid riceivables 5L - = - 578314
Aconeed income .584, 754 - - = b BG4 S04
Teatnl P Ta0 620 5% L B BI40 ERLER0 RS0 RIEEH
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The credit quality of the financial assets was determined as follows:

The above assets were classified by the Company as High grade, Medium grade, Low grade or
Pastdue. High grade pertaing to assets of the Company that are highly convertible to cash baged
on the Company”’s experience and those that zre classified by the Insurance Commission as readily
admitted assets. Accounts beyond the standard $0-day credit term are classified as Past due.
Although categorized as past due, these are highly collectible accounts based on Company's
experience. Normally, these are corporate accounts wherein the Company has reciprocity of
business. However, it took a while for some accounts to revert to Collection department and
secure their commitments, It is 1o be noted that bad debts provision over insurance reczivable
considerably decreased from 6% in 2013 to 5% this 2016,

The table below shows the analysis of age of financial assets that are past-due burt are not
impaired.

December 31, 2016

Tatal
ARf whulvsis of fMinancil musets H_:Irdn hurmim?hﬂ] past dse bud Past-diig
<30 dayy Sl tool dav: Bl oS0 devs =90 34w nol inpaired and impaired Total
Thiduradie feceivall e
[reie frimm brokers and
agenb PEEDOBIZT  BIEINIAZ  FIOEATEEE  RANANTTIS PIETAMDNTS  PEATILOE] PO 4131327
hee fromn ceddng
ompanies = 421337 1,653,200 - 2405237 Jigid 14¥7,158%
Reinsuramoe recoverahle
o patd lpsoes JDEINS 15546 17640 TATITAG 3410388 13,630,751 17,061,148
AFS financial assecs = 1 2 = A 11,134, 34 11156347
Tuial P A0 E!ﬁ FAOEAG,28E P41 IS5 3ET  PATATRAS] PISAESATI9  PRIESL1IH ﬂ]'l‘.l]ﬂl!
December 31, 2015
Toml
& pw prathiir of finencial assets past-due bui mot impaired pasd due but Pasi-due
<I0des 31 weblday 61 toSidaes » 80 dms 3ot mmpaicsd  and mmpained Tkl
I=surance s=cavabizs
D from ke and
ageaix REATSATIE BGO) 18RS FMLLZTAZ  BSR T4 R4] BISSIM3IAT  BERRSOR RIAROS0301
Deie Trom chding
compansas 3 |u242% 135K LhE 2Ty (W[ E ] 407391 |.l-'|'l:"|391 3540 AL
Bensummse recoversia
o pand |oases 18& 105 13177 JA16755 FASRIED 5745917 14,605,781 211305549
AFS s mmems - - - - = 477111471 47011 1473
Tofal REE3234]  FARATI TR0 FILATIOL  PAESIGER0T RIGRTINET]  BTIIEILART AT 30L AN
e ———

The standard credit-tzrm given by the Company is 90 davs. However, accounts more than 90 days
may be past due bot not necessarily impaired. A 180-day credit-term may be given ta those
accounts with reciprocal business and those accounts involving bigger amount of sum insured or
the jumbo accounts which as practiced are subject to quarterly remittance scheme.

Liguiditv rizk
Liguidiry rizk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial instruments.

The Company holds sufficient liquid assets 1o enable it 1o continue normal operations. To achieve
this obiective, the Company positions its investments to match the projected cash requirements.
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To strike the optimal balance between generating adequate investment returns and holding
securities that can be easily sold for cash if required, the Company divides its investment portfolio
into franches with liguidity objestive and benchmarks. The Company's core liquidity portfolic is
invested in relatively liquid securities that can be readily sold if required. In addition o the core
portfolio, the Company maintaing a second tranche of liquidity that is alwayvs mvested in the most
highly liquid securities to cover its expected operational cash flow needs. The third tranche of
liquidity are the Company’s equity resources held together with 2 portfolic of fixed income
securities which are both designated as AFS investments,

Maturiny profiles

The table below summerises the maturity profile of the financial assets and liabilities of the
Company using undiscounted contractisal maturities based on remaining contractual abligations,
or for the insurance contract labilities, based on the estimated timing of net cash outflows.

December ]il 26 Wiithin a NEr 2-3 yEATS -*I-_l-_}'m Cher § bz L o Term Taal
Cpsh ind cash

eipwivalenis F534,181 595 - B B B~ PSR,181.595
ShoFr-term

Investments B4 881,781 = = - = LR I 0
Insuraped receivalbils 458,493,159 - - - - 453,493,259
AFE secarities - 13655630 59,070 650 TEE, L 140 IIE 201,748 D IE020.568
Loxnzand

Fecedviabies 2ETINS - - - - 14TIII
Acerwed income BEESIATL = - - - AT
Reinsurance asseiy HEEEH - - = = 155, (8%

I BE0.070.050

Total inancial assets #1 FI1B.201,748 FL.614, TR 456

Inswramce contract

Lisbhlitles PEET. 2,130 P- P B- P~ PEITDET,133
Insmramce payables Db, ERB.122 - - - - M), BB, 1T
Acoounits pavabde &3 464,003 - - - = B35,264,193
Commission payabls 111,714,743 - - - - 121,704,743
Total other fimancial

linbilities #1065 154.291 B E- B - ?].-UE!II.HEI
Decertber I_,EEIIS 1|'n'r|hi|'|_|'ln-'¢._u 2-3 years 4§ years Cheer 5 ves Mo Term Trtal
Cash and sash

equivalents BE19 023520 [ [e— I B=  P3I9023.521
Shori-lgrm

investments 460037 - - = - 47061037
|pairance receivales J03.057 L&S - - - = A5 45T 63
AFS dcuritias A A4T 55K 20730714 4T2.196,3413 96, TR AT 39,565,108
Loess and recoiveblo 1ATTOST - = - SATTIHT
Acerusd inzome A% 304 - - - - £ A0 A0y
Reinsgrance st J15. 072K B4 - - - o 11 %ﬂ E2id
Total financal atigls | PL 129 R0 Akh | F I RETRIT e RATI EDG 303 306 704800 FI M 101,156
Ensurmnce contrsct

lighidimes P80, 186216 - e e P BIE0 156,116
Insuracs paahles 56,067 058 2 - - - 56,067 D46
Accounts pevable 71,313,188 . = = = '-'|.1|1.155
Commiscion povable @7 I15055 - - = - BT 215035
Tetad acher financiak

liatalibies F'j'?a!,'.'il]_'hiﬂ-'-l | fe - P-  POT4.750,584
Merker Fizk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risks: foreign
exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price
risk ),
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The Compary structures levels of market risk it accepts throogh a market risk policy that
determines what constitutes market risk for the Company; basis used to fair value financial assets
and liabilities; asset allocation and portfolio limit structure; diversification benchmarks by type of
instrument; sets out the net exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterpartics and
indusiry segments; reporting of markert risk exposures;, monitoring compliance with market risk
policy and review of market risk policy for pertinence and changing enviromment,

{@) Currency risk

The Company's pringipal transactions are carried out in Philippine peso and its foreign
exchange risk arises primarily with respect to US dollars, The Companv’s financial assets are
primarily demominated in the same currencies as its insurance contracts, which mitigate the
foreign exchange rate risk. Thus, the main foreign exchange risk arises from recognized
assets and labilives denominzted in currencies other than in which the msuranee contracts are
expected to be settled,

The following table shows the details of the Company's foreign currency denominated
imdnetary assets and liabilitics and their Philippine peso equivalents,

2014 2015

Lsh PHF LED FHP

Financial assets;
Cash and cash equivalents 5431689  P21,463,600 5B03.77%  PATR2I56TI
Ooveniment securifies - - -

5431,689 B21,4463,600 5803775 PATRIS AT

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all
other variables held constant, showing the impact on profit before tax (due to changes in fair
value of currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities),

December 31, 2016
Impact on
profit before tax
Change Increase
in variables {decrease)
UsD +2,660% B570,932
LsD -2.660% (ST0,931)
December 31, 2013
Impact an
profit before tax
Change Increase
in variables {decresse)
UsD +2.93 (%% P1,108,292
ush -2.930%% (1,108,292}

There is no impact on the Company's equity other than those already affecting the profit,
(B Imteresr rate visk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value/future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate becaute of changes in market interast rates.
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Floating rate instruments expose the Company to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed
interest rate [nstruments sxpose the Company to fair value risk, The Company’s fixed rate
investments in particular are exposed 1o fair value risk.

The following table shews the information relating to the Company's financial instruments thas
are exposed 1o fair value interest rate rigk presented by maturity profile.

Isterest Matmrity
BatesWithin a vear I-3vears d=5 vears  Over 3 vears Total
AFS debi securities
0146 ATE%-E.00% FII9959)  PULAS603T PYTILIL434  BOS4 635,885 BT65,631.00%
g N 31 ohEa.0 100 40547550 29710718 - 472 804,305 553, [T4.600

The analysis below s performed for reascnably possible movements in key varighles with all
ather variables held constant, showing the impact on equity (that reflects adjustments on
revaluing fixed rate AFS financial assets).

December 31, 2016
Impact on equity
Change in variables  Inerease (decrease)
Peso +100 basis points (P4.769,464)
Pesn =100 hasis points 43274211

December 31, 2013

Impact on equity

Change in voriakles Increase (decrease)
Pesn + 100 basis paints (F26,890.5346)
Peso =100 besis points 55,818,677

(o) Price visk
The Company's price sk exposure at year-end relates to financial assets and labilities whese
values will Mluchate as a result of changes in market prices, principally, AFS equity securities,

Such investment securities are subject to price risk due to changes in market values of
instruments arising either from factors specific to individual instruments or their issuers or
factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s market risk policy requires 1t to manage such risks by setting and monitoring
objectives and constraints on investments, diversification plan, and limits oa investment in
each sector and market,

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all

other variables held constant, showing the impact on equity (that reflects adjustments on
changes in fair value of AFS financial asscts),
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December 31, 2014

Impact on equity
Market Index Change in Variable Incrense {decrease)
PSEi 20016 +21.73% {F7,536,109)
PSEi 2016 =173 Taat, 109

December 31, 2013

lmpact on eguity

Market Index Change i Variable Increase (decrease)
PSEi 2013 +0.48%% (B23,395,483)
PSEi 2013 -0.46% (23,95,483)

25. Related Party Transactions

Parties are related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in meking financial and operating decisions, or
if the parties are subject to common control or commeon significant influence, A related party may
be an individual or 2 corporate entaty.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has trensactions with related parties. Significant
transactions with related parties follow:

December 31, 2016
Transactieng Cutstanding
diiring the vesr balance Terms Conditions
Intercompany accounts receivable:
Or-desmanid:
MAA Corporane and Compliance noreinieres Unsocored; no
Fhil. Ine. (Common Control) | | bebring Imnpairment
[ P-
Short-term bemefits
Kev Man om #21.264.124 - Mol applicable Mot apmlicable
December 31, 2015
Transactioms Crsstanding
during th vest balance Terms Conditions
Intercompany accounis receivable;
On-depand;
hiaA Corporate end Compliance nom-interesl  Linsecured, no
Phil.., 1=, { Comman Centrail B3 16220 o benring impairment
Bi16,320 P
Shon-term benelhs
Koy Monagemen Perapamnel FZ| 537 269 [ B ot gzplicable Tat uEE'I:lm'hIE
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2%, Reconcilistion of Net Income Under PFRS to Statutory Net Income

The reconciliation of net income under FFRS to statutory net ncome follows:

W6 2015
PFRS net income B74,967,703 B37,162,593
Adjustments for:
Difference in change in provision for
unearned premiums - net 28,036,112 1,073,910
Deferred acquisition costs - net (20,367 978) (22,059,131
Change in [BNR - net 0,434,615 12,640,126
Tax effects of PFRS adjustments {(11,430.818) (21,496.472)
Statutory net ingome P101,639,634 B107 321,026

27. Contingencies

Various legal actions and claims are pending or may be assessed in the future against the
Company from litigations and claims incident 1o the ordinary course of business, Related risks
have been analvzed as to likelihood of ncoumrence. Although the outcome of these matters cannot

alwayvs be ascertained with pretision, management belicves that no material liabilities are likely to
pegsult.

2%. Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010
In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR No. 15-2010 hereunder are the information

on taxes and license fees paid or accrued duning the taxable year.

a, The Company is a VAT-registered company with VAT output tax declaration of

P104.432 544 for the vear hased on the amount reflectad in the Direct Premiums of
BRT0 271,200,

The Company has exempt sales amounting to B50,149 233 pursuant to the provisions of
Republic Act Ne. 7227, RR No_ 2-2005, and BIR Ruling ITAD-45-00.

b, The amount of input VAT texes claimed are broken down as follows:

Balance at January 1 PB.006,T15
Current year's purchases/paymenits |
Goods other than for resale 22,179,302
Services paid lodped under operating expenses 19,598,954
59,784,971
Input VAT applicd against Output VAT (52,438, 712)
Balance at December 31 B7.346,259

c.  Taxes relating to nonlife insurance policies that have heen shifted or passed om the
palizvhiolders and are not recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income follow:

Dietails of DST for fellowing transactions during the year are:
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Transaction Amount DST
51 10-Policies of insurance upon property B7431,761,185 PO2.OT0,148
D51 14=Motor 551,793,378 68974172
DS109-Accident and Health 132,414,625 331.037
B]1427.969 188  PB162,275337

The total unpaid DST as at December 31, 2016 amounted to B12,351.379.

Other taxes during vear which represent the total acerued and paid follow:
Tax Amount
Premium Taxes B2,762,683
Fire Service Taxss (FST) 4,241,971
Local Government Taxes (LGT}) 929,109
B7,933,763

The total unpaid as at December 31, 2016 amounted to #1 1,893,382 which comprised of
248 868 B441.603, and ®11,405,021 for Premium Taxes, FST, and LGT, respectively.

Details of other taxes, local and naticnal, follow:

Mati 2

Insurance Commission Fees R ORE? 392
LTO Registration Fees 34,331
FET 21,082
DST 0,381
Total PELAT 185
Logal:

Mavor's Permit B120.509
Real Estate Taxes 30,084
Oithers 232,547
Total 383,140

The amaount of withholding taxes for the year amounted to |

Tax on compensation and benefits

P11,898,053

Creditable withholding taxes 32,969,430
Final withhelding taxes 2,065,102
Total B, 933 507
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The tc:-?al unpaid withholding taxes a5 at December 31, 2016 amounted to B4.187,482 which
comprised of 81,637,787, 2,577,775 and B171,920 for Tax on compensaticn, creditable and

withhelding on final taxes, respectively.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company has tax assessment amounting to #3,008,247 for
tuxable vear 2013,
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